Agenda - Y Pwyligor Cyllid

Lleoliad: | gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a:
Committee Room 4 - Ty Hywel Bethan Davies

Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 27 Medi 2017 Clerc y Pwyllgor

Amser: 09.30 0300 200 6372

SeneddCyvllid@cynulliad.cymru

2.1

Penderfynodd y Pwyllgor ar 21 Medi 2017 i wahardd y cyhoedd o
weddill y cyfarfod.

Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau
(09.30)

Papur(au) i'w nodi
(09.30)
PTN1 - Llythyr gan Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet ar gyfer Cyllid a Llywodraeth Leol
- 21 Medi 2017
(Tudalennau 1 - 6)

Y Bil Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol a'r Tribiwnlys Addysg (Cymru):

Trafod yr adroddiad atodol drafft
(09.30-09.45)
Papur 1 - Adroddiad atodol drafft

Ymchwiliad i'r amcangyfrifon ariannol sy'n cyd-fynd a

deddfwriaeth: Trafod yr adroddiad drafft
(09.45-10.15) (Tudalennau 7 - 34)
Papur 2 - Adroddiad drafft

Cost gofalu am boblogaeth sy'n heneiddio - Dull o gynnal y

gwaith craffu
(10.15-10.30) (Tudalennau 35 - 50)
Papur 3 - Dull o gynnal y gwaith craffu

,Ff Cynulliad National
/’ Cenedlaethol Assembly for

Cymru Wales



Papur 4 - Cylch gorchwyl

Cyllideb Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 2018-19 - Dull o gynnal y

gwaith craffu
(10.30-11.00) (Tudalennau 51 - 53)
Papur 5 - Rhaglen waith ar gyfer craffu ar y gyllideb

Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru 2025: Taro Bargen ym Mhroses

Gyllidebol Llywodraeth Cymru: Edrych Ymlaen at 2021-22: Sesiwn

friffio anffurfiol
(11.00-12.30) (Tudalennau 54 - 105)
Michael Trickey, Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru 2025

Papur 6 - Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru 2025: Dewisiadau Cyfaddawdu
Cyllidebol Llywodraeth Cymru: edrych ymlaen at 2021-22



Y Pwyllgor Cyllid | Finance Committee

FIN(5)-22-17 PTN1 Eitem 2.1

= NP
Mark Drakeford AC/AM ’\/ (}rﬁf
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Gyllid a Llywodraeth Leol ,/[_szl

Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Simon Thomas AC
Cadeirydd y Pwyligor Cyllid
Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru
Bae Caerdydd
Caerdydd
CF99 1NA
21 Medi2017

A\/\rwe 6\ S WM(

Rwyf yn ysgrifennu er mwyn rhoi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf ichi am y cynnydd a wnaed yn
ddiweddar mewn nifer o feysydd sy’n ymwneud a chyllid a threthi, ac i fwrw golwg ar y
gwaith sydd o’n blaen.

Awdurdod Cyllid Cymru

Mae'r gwaith o sefydlu awdurdod treth newydd yn gymhleth ac mae iddo sawl elfen, gan
gynnwys trethi, cyllid, materion digidol, data, a materion cyfreithiol. Mae tim y rhaglen yn
cydweithredu & chyfres eang o randdeiliaid a nifer o adrannau llywodraeth y DU i sicrhau
bod prosesau a systemau ar waith erbyn mis Ebrill 2018. Bydd hyn yn galluogi Awdurdod
Cyllid Cymru (ACC) i ddarparu gwasanaeth trethi digidol dwyieithog i'w gwsmeriaid. Mae’r
amcangyfrifon diweddaraf yn dangos bod modd rhoi ACC ar waith o fewn y ffigurau a
gyhoeddwyd o'r blaen. Bydd rhaid i'r costau rhedeg blynyddol adlewyrchu'r dyletswyddau
ychwanegol sy’n gysylitiedig & chasglu'r tal atodol am ail gartref ac annibyniaeth gweithredol
TTTyrAwdurdod.

Yfory, byddaf yn cyhoeddi enw’r sawl yr wyf wedi’i benodi’n brif weithredwr ACC ynghyd ag
aelodau’r bwrdd. Dyfed Alsop, Cyfarwyddwr Cyflawni presennol ACC, fydd prif weithredwr
cyntaf ACC, a hynny am gyfnod penodol hyd at fis Awst 2019. Gwneuthum y penderfyniad
hwn yn dilyn cyfweliad cyn penodi a gynhaliwyd gan Shan Morgan, yr Ysgrifennydd
Parhaol, Kathryn Bishop, darpar gadeirydd ACC; a John Whiting, Aelod Annibynnol o'r
Panel. Cadarnhaodd y panel cyfweld fod sgiliau a phrofiad Dyfed yn gydnaws &'r gofynion
sy’'n gysylitiedig & swydd prif weithredwr cyntaf ACC.

Cyn bo hir, bydd Kathryn Bishop yn cael ei phenodi’n ffurfiol yn gadeirydd cyntaf ACC. Er
mwyn sicrhau bod digon o ehangder, profiad a gwybodaeth ar y bwrdd o’r cychwyn, rwyf yn

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay 0300 0604400
Caerdydd « Cardiff Gohebiaeth.Mark.Drakeford@llyw.cymru

CF99 1INA Correspondence.Mark.Drakeford@gov.wales

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh. Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.

Tudalen y pecyn 1



penodi pum aelod anweithredol i ymuno & Kathryn. Yn dilyn ymgyrch recriwtio penodiadau
cyhoeddus lawn a chryn ddiddordeb yn y swyddi, dyma aelodau’r bwrdd: Martin Warren,
David Jones, Jocelyn Davies, Dyfed Edwards a Lakshmi Narain (mae’r bywgraffiadau
wedi'u hamgau, er gwybodaeth).

Credaf fod r6l ACC a gwaith ei fwrdd yn hynod bwysig ac edrychaf ymlaen at eu cyfraniad i
ddatganoli cyllidol dros y blynyddoedd nesaf.

Paratoadau ar gyfer cyfraddau treth incwm Cymreig

Mae'r paratoadau ar gyfer cyflwyno cyfraddau treth incwm Cymreig (CTIC), sef treth y bydd
Cyllid a Thollau Ei Mawrhydi (CThEM) yn parhau i'w chasglu, yn cadw at yr amserlen. Mae
Ysgrifennydd Ariannol y Trysorlys, y Gwir Anrhydeddus Mel Stride AS, wedi cydnabod
pwysigrwydd adlewyrchu cyd-destun Cymru yn y gwaith datblygu, ac mae wedi ymrwymo i
helpu i gyflawni fy mhum blaenoriaeth, fel a ganlyn:

e ymrwymiad gan Weinidogion Llywodraeth y DU ac uwch-swyddogion CThEM i
ymgysylltu & Phwyligor Cyllid y Cynulliad Cenedlaethol;

o cytundeb gan CThEM i rannu data amserol ac o ansawdd uchel ynglyn & threthi incwm
yng Nghymru ag ACC, fel y gall ACC ddarparu dadansoddiadau i ategu cyngor ar
bennu cyfraddau treth incwm, fel y nodir yn y fframwaith cyllidol;

. cytuno ar ddull o ymdrin & chydymffurfiaeth & threthi incwm sy’'n cyflawni anghenion
Llywodraeth Cymru a CThEM,;

o diffiniad clir o'r costau a chytundeb arnynt;

o cyfathrebu da & threthdalwyr Cymru, yn arbennig mewn cysylltiad &'r Gymraeg.

Mae Ysgrifennydd Ariannol y Trysorlys wedi cadarnhau y bydd yn rhoi’r holl wybodaeth
ddiweddaraf i'r Pwyllgor Cyllid a’r Cynulliad Cenedlaethol yn y broses weithredu ac yn eu
cynnwys ynddi'n llwyr. Mae wedi nodi mai Jim Harra, Cyfarwyddwr Cyffredinol CThEM ar
gyfer y Strategaeth Gwsmeriaid a Chynllunio Trethi, yw'r Swyddog Cyfrifyddu Ychwanegol
cyfrifol ar gyfer CTIC, a fydd ar gael i ynmddangos gerbron y Pwyligor Cyllid ar gais, ac mae
wedi cytuno y bydd y Swyddfa Archwilio Cenedlaethol yn cyflwyno adroddiadau i'r Cynulliad
yn flynyddol ar berfformiad CThEM.

Fel y gwnaethoch ei nodi yn eich datganiad am y gwersi yn sgil diwygio cyllidol yn yr Alban,

---bydd-yn-hanfodol-gallu-cael-gafael-ar-ddata-llawn;-eywir-ac-amserol-wrth-i-Lywedraeth— -

Cymru a’r Cynulliad Cenedlaethol baratoi ar gyfer CTIC. Mae Ysgrifennydd Ariannol y
Trysorlys wedi cydnabod y pwynt hwn ac mae ei swyddogion yn gweithio gyda fy
swyddogion i er mwyn sicrhau bod trefniadau ar waith sy’'n peri bod y data angenrheidiol ar
gael. Mae trafodaethau’n mynd rhagddynt hefyd i gytuno ar ddealltwriaeth a diffiniad clir o'r
dewisiadau a'r costau sy'n gysylitiedig & gweithredu CTIC, a chynlluniau CThEM o ran
gweithgareddau cydymffurfio mewn cysylltiad & CTIC.

Er mwyn helpu i sicrhau bod materion sy’'n hanfodol i Gymru yn cael sylw llawn wrth baratoi
ar gyfer CTIC, mae Llywodraeth Cymru a CThEM wedi sefydlu cyd-weithgor ar gyfathrebu.
Bydd ffocws cryf ar y Gymraeg. Fel cam cychwynnol, rwyf wedi cytuno ar gynnig yr
Ysgrifennydd Ariannol i ddefnyddio rhagddodiad ‘C’ i nodi trethdalwyr Cymru.

Arloesi i Arbed

Fis Chwefror, lansiodd Llywodraeth Cymru Gronfa Arloesi i Arbed, sef partneriaeth rhwng y
Gronfa Buddsoddi i Arbed; Nesta, yr elusen arloesedd; Prifysgol Caerdydd; a Chyngor
Gweithredu Gwirfoddol Cymru (CGGC).

Tudalen y pecyn 2



Sefydlwyd y gronfa newydd hon, sy'n werth £5 miliwn, i ddenu cynigion mwy arloesol, ac
sydd felly & mwy o risg, o bosibl, a fyddai'n cael budd o arbenigedd Nesta mewn datblygu
prosiectau ac o allu ymchwilio y Brifysgol. Mae CGGC yn darparu ei brofiad o'r trydydd
sector yng Nghymru i’r fenter. Hyd y gwn, y dull a fabwysiadir yn y cyswllit hwn yw'r dull
cyntaf o'i fath ac mae'n ennyn diddordeb nifer o lywodraethau eraill.

Daeth cyfanswm o 50 o geisiadau i law erbyn y dyddiad cau, sef 23 Mai. Bu'r rhain yn
destun ymarfer dewis trylwyr a arweiniodd at nodi wyth prosiect i gael cymorth ariannol ac
anariannol er mwyn ymchwilio ’'w cynigion, eu datblygu, a’'u mireinio. Pan fo'r cam hwn
wedi'i gwblhau, bydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn gallu asesu pa rai o'r prosiectau a fydd yn
cyflawni o ran gwella gwasanaethau a chreu manteision rhyddhau arian. Bydd y prosiectau
llwyddiannus yn gallu gwneud cais am gymorth ariannol ad-daladwy i weithredu eu syniad
yn llwyr. Rwyf yn disgwyl y bydd y cam hwn wedi'i gyrraedd yn gynnar yn 2018.

Ymysg y mathau o brosiectau sy'n cael cymorth mae: presgripsiynu cymdeithasol a bancio
amser; plant sy'n derbyn gofal, rhannu asedau trafnidiaeth yn y Gogledd; a threfniadau
gofal i'r rhai sy'n agored i niwed. Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn gweithio gyda chymysgedd
amrywiol o sefydliadau, gan gynnwys elusen digartrefedd Llamau, Ymddiriedolaeth
Gwasanaethau Ambiwlans Cymru, Leonard Cheshire Disability, Cyngor Gwynedd ac
Innovate Trust.

Gwaith annibynnol o graffu ar ragolygon refeniw trethi

Disgwylir i Ysgol Fusnes Prifysgol Bangor gyflwyno adroddiad cyn bo hir ar ei waith
annibynnol o graffu ar ragolygon refeniw trethi Llywodraeth Cymru, sydd i'w cynnwys yng
Nghyllideb 2018-19. Byddaf yn cyhoeddi’r adroddiad ochr yn ochr &r Gyllideb ddrafft ar 3
Hydref er mwyn cyfrannu at ystyriaethau’r Cynulliad.

Bam hefyd yn ystyried y dewisiadau yn y tymor hwy o ran y gwaith annibynnol o lunio
rhagolygon refeniw trethi. Yn y cam hwn yn y broses ddatganoli gyllidol, nid wyf o’r farn ei
bod yn gymesur creu corff rhagolygon annibynnol newydd yng Nghymru pan fo arbenigedd
mewn cyrff sefydledig ar lefel y DU. Y dull yr wyf yn ei ffafrio ar hyn o bryd yw i'r Swyddfa
Cyfrifoldeb Cyllidebol (OBR) ymgymryd &'r cyfrifoldebau o ran rhagolygon annibynnol i
Gymru. Byddai hyn yn peri bod angen newid gweithrediadau presennol OBR, gan gynnwys
yrangen, fel y gwelaf y sefylifa, iddi fod & lleoliad yng Nghymru. Byddaf yn parhau i gynnal
trafodaethau & Llywodraeth y DU ynglyn &'r goblygiadau ymarferol ond, hyd yma, bu'n
agored i't syniad o0 OBR yn ysgwyddo'r cyfrifoldeb ehangach hwn.

Is-ddeddfwriaeth

Mae rhaglen o is-ddeddfwriaeth yn mynd rhagddi fel y gellir cyflwyno'r trethi Cymreig.
Ymhellach at y newidiadau a wnaed yn Rheol Sefydlog 27.8A, cadarnhaf isod yr offerynnau
statudol yr wyf yn bwriadu eu gosod cyn 1 Ebrill 2018:

o Rheoliadau Datgeliadau a Ganiateir dan Ddeddf Casglu a Rheoli Trethi (Cymru) 2016
[Hydref 2017] — gweithdrefn gadarnhaol

. Rheoliadau Gweinyddu'r Ddeddf Casglu a Rheoli Trethi [Hydref 2017] — gweithdrefn
negyddol

o Rheoliadau Trefniadau Ad-dalu y Ddeddf Casglu a Rheoli Trethi [lonawr 2018] —
gweithdrefn negyddol

. Rheoliadau Deddf Casglu a Rheoli Trethi: Awdurdod Cyllid Cymru (Pwerau i
Ymchwilio i Droseddau) [lonawr 2018] — gweithdrefn gadarnhaol

. Deddf Casglu a Rheoli Trethi (Deddf Enillion Troseddau 2002) — Cymhwyso pwerau i
ACC [lonawr 2018] — gweitardtlengyqeetyn 3



o Rheoliadau Deddf Casglu a Rheoli Trethi (Deddf Rheoleiddio Pwerau Ymchwilio 2000)
[lonawr 2018] — gweithdrefn negyddol

o Rheoliadau Treth Trafodiadau Tir (Gweinyddu) (Cymru) [lonawr 2018] — gweithdrefn
negyddol

o Rheoliadau Treth Trafodiadau Tir (Darpariaethau Trosiannol) (Cymru) [lonawr 2018] -
gweithdrefn gadarnhaol

. Rheoliadau Treth Trafodiadau Tir (Swm Penodedig o Rent Perthnasol) (Cymru)
[lonawr 2018] — gweithdrefn gadarnhaol

. Rheoliadau Treth Trafodiadau Tir (Bandiau Treth a Chyfraddau Treth) (Cymru) [lonawr
2018] — gweithdrefn gadarnhaol

. Rheoliadau Treth Gwarediadau Tirlenwi (Gweinyddu) (Cymru) 2017 [Rhagfyr 2017] —
gweithdrefn gadarnhaol

o Rheoliadau Treth Gwarediadau Tirlenwi (Cofnodion) (Cymru) 2017 [Rhagfyr 2017] —
gweithdrefn negyddol

o Rheoliadau Treth Gwarediadau Tirlenwi (Cyfraddau Treth) (Cymru) 2017 [lonawr
2018] — gweithdrefn gadarnhaol

o Chwe gorchymyn er mwyn cychwyn darpariaethau’r tair Deddf.
Byddwn yn croesawu’n arbennig safbwyntiau’r pwyllgor ynghylch y cyfraddau a'r bandiau ar
gyfer y Dreth Trafodiadau Tir a'r Dreth Gwarediadau Tirlenwi; rheoliadau gweinyddu’r Dreth

Gwarediadau Tirlenwi, yn arbennig darpariaethau profion colled wrth danio a chredyd
ansolfedd cwsmeriaid; a’r rheoliadau ynghylch pwerau ymchwilio.

Cynllun Cymunedau'r Dreth Gwarediadau Tirlenwi

Ar 8 Medi, cyhoeddodd Llywodraeth Cymru y gwahoddiad i gyflwyno tendr er mwyn penodi
corff dosbarthu a fydd yn gyfrifol am weinyddu Cynllun Cymunedau’r Dreth Gwarediadau
Tirlenwi'. Y bwriad yw penodi'r corff ym mis Rhagfyr ac iddo weithio gyda swyddogion er
mwyn bod yn barod i gyhoeddi'r Cynllun erbyn 1 Ebrill 2018.

Edrychaf ymlaen at weithio gyda’r Pwyligor Cyllid yn y flwyddyn sydd i ddod, yn y cyfnhod

“eyffrous hwn o safbwynt datganoli; wrth-inni sefydiu-adrantywodraethol anweinidogol gyntaf

Llywodraeth Cymru a chyflwyno trethi Cymreig cyntaf yr oes fodern.

3(\ ZB(/\)L}!
W,

Mark Drakeford AC/AM
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Gyllid a Llywodraeth Leol
Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government

' hitps://www.gwerthwchigymru. llyw.W%Mﬁa@@y@ﬁh_view.aspx?lD=SEP21 4142



Kathryn Bishop
Cadeirydd

Mae Kathryn Bishop yn Gymrawd Cyswilit o Ysgol Fusnes Said ym Mhrifysgol Rhydychen,
lle mae'n cyfarwyddo ac yn addysgu ar raglenni arweinyddiaeth i gwmniau gwasanaethau
proffesiynol a chorfforaethau rhyngwladol. Mae ganddi dros 30 mlynedd o brofiad o weithio
gyda sefydliadau sy'n mynd trwy newidiadau mawr, a hynny yn y sector cyhoeddus a'r
sector preifat. Mae ei chefndir yn cynnwys TG ac AD ac mae wedi gweithio fel
cyfarwyddwr a rheolwr llinell, rheolwr prosiect ac ymgynghorydd. Mae hefyd wedi bod yn
gyfarwyddwr anweithredol i nifer o gyrff.

Mae Kathryn wedi gweithio yng Nghymru a thros Gymru am y 15 mlynedd diwethaf: yn
gyntaf fel Cyfarwyddwr Anweithredol yn Llywodraeth Cymru ac, yn fwy diweddar, fel
Comisiynydd y Gwasanaeth Sifil dros Gymru, gyda chyfrifoldeb dros reoleiddio pob
penodiad it Gwasanaeth Sifil. Bu hefyd yn gadeirydd anweithredol i nifer o gyrff y
Llywodraeth, gan gynnwys yn Asiantaeth Ffiniau'r DU, sy'n rhan o'r Swyddfa Gartref, ac yn
Swyddfa Eiddo Deallusol y DU.

Jocelyn Davies
Aelod Anweithredol o'r Bwrdd

Mae gan Jocelyn Davies ran amlwg yng ngwaith nifer o gyrff, gan gynnwys Panel
Cynghori Comisiynydd Plant Cymru, Pwyligor Archwilio a Sicrhau Risg y Comisiynydd
(Cadeirydd) a Phwyligor Archwilio a Sicrhau Risg Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol.
Mae hefyd yn Ymddiriedolwr ac yn Is-gadeirydd i Fwrdd Gofal a Thrwsio Cymru. Mae
Jocelyn hefyd yn aelod o'r Tasglu Gweinidogol ar gyfer y Cymoedd ac yn un o
ymddiriedolwyr Undeb Credyd Plaid Cymru.

Yn ystod ei chyfnod yn Aelod o Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru (1999-2016), bu Jocelyn yn
aelod o sawl pwyligor, gan gynnwys y Pwyligor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus a'i ragflaenydd, y
Pwyllgor Archwilio. Fe'i penodwyd yn Ddirprwy Weinidog yn Llywodraeth glymblaid
Cymru'n Un rhwng Plaid Cymru a Llafur rhwng 2007 a 2011, gyda chyfrifoldeb dros dai ac
adfywio. Yn ddiweddarach bu'n cadeirio Pwyligor Cyllid y Cynulliad tan 2016.

DyfedwEdwards_v e e e o e e e A e e e

Aelod Anweithredol o'r Bwrdd

Mae gan Dyfed wybodaeth eang am addysg yng Nghymru fel cyn-athro a llywodraethwr
ysgolion cynradd ac uwchradd. Bu hefyd yn Arweinydd y Portffolio Addysg yng Nghyngor
Gwynedd.

Dyfed yw cyn-Arweinydd Cyngor Gwynedd a bu'n Is-lywydd Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol
Cymru ac yn gwasanaethu fel cynrychiolydd ar Is-grwp Cyllid Llywodraeth Cymru/CLILC.
Roedd Dyfed yn llefarydd ar nifer o bynciau yn ystod y cyfnod hwn.

Mae hefyd wedi bod yn aelod o Grwp Arbenigwyr Llywodraeth Cymru ar Gartrefu
Poblogaeth sy'n Heneiddio a Grwp Gorchwyl a Gorffen Cymunedau Cymraeg Llywodraeth
Cymru. Mae hefyd wedi gwasanaethu ar nifer o gyrff yng Ngwynedd ac wedi cael profiad
o'r sector BBaCh, gan gynnwys ymwneud a chychwyn busnesau.

Tudaleny pecyn 5



David Jones
Aelod Anweithredol o'r Bwrdd

Mae David Jones yn entrepreneur llwyddiannus ym maes technoleg sydd bellach yn
treulio'r rhan fwyaf o'i amser yn gweithio yn y sector cyhoeddus mewn ystod o swyddi
ymgynghori a chyngori a swyddi anweithredol - y rhain oll yn canolbwyntio ar sut y gall
datblygiadau digidol wneud gwasanaethau cyhoeddus yn well, yn rhatach ac yn fwy
diogel.

Mae David yn gyfrannwr mynych it cyfryngau darlledu, gan drafod pynciau o
seiberddiogelwch i Strategaeth Ddigidol y Llywodraeth. Mae ganddo nifer o swyddi
anweithredol, gan gynnwys Cymwysterau Cymru, ac mae'n aelod o Banel Sector TGCh
Llywodraeth Cymru.

Lakshmi Narain
Aelod Anweithredol o'r Bwrdd

Lakshmi Narain yw cadeirydd presennol cangen De Cymru o'r Sefydliad Siartredig Trethu
(CIOT) ac mae'n aelod gweithredol o Fwrdd Strategol Cymru ar gyfer Sefydliad Cyfrifwyr
Siartredig Cymru a Lloegr (ICAEW). Trwy ei waith gyda'r cyrff hyn, mae Lakshmi wedi
ymwneud a'r gwaith o ddatblygu a diwygio trethi niferus.

Mae gan Lakshmi ddiddordeb mawr mewn trethi, fel sy'n amiwg o'i brofiad amrywiol o
ddarlithio, ei aelodaeth o fwrdd golygyddol y Tax Journal a'i rél fel arbenigwr technegol ar
drethi gyda nifer o gwmniau gwasanaethau proffesiynol; hyn yn ogystal &' waith fel
golygydd a chyfrannwr i nifer o gyhoeddiadau trethi i bobl broffesiynol yn y maes. Lakshmi
oedd Cynghorydd Arbennig y Pwyligor Cyllid wrth iddo archwilio Deddf Casglu a Rheoli
Trethi (Cymru) 2016 a Deddf Treth Trafodiadau Tir a Gwrthweithio Osgoi Trethi
Datganoledig (Cymru) 2017.

Mae Lakshmi yn Gymrawd o'r Sefydliad Siartredig Trethu (CIOT) a Sefydliad Cyfrifwyr
Siartredig Cymru a Lloegr (ICAEW).

~ Martin Warren

Aolod Arweithredol oF Bwrdd T

Mae Martin yn aelod o'r Bwrdd Cynghori ar Drethi a sefydiwyd gan Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet
dros Gyllid a Llywodraeth Leol, ac mae'n aelod o Fwrdd Strategol Busnes Cymru. Mae'n
ymddiriedolwr i nifer o gyrff, yn fwyaf arbennig elusen Menter yr Ifanc ac ef yw cadeirydd
presennol y Pwyligor Archwilio a Risg.

Bu'n rhan o Fenter yr Ifanc ers 1995, gan ymuno & Bwrdd Cymru yn 2009 a dod yn
Gadeirydd yn 2010.Roedd yn gyfrifol am ad-drefnu ac adfywio'r sylfaen wirfoddoli yng
Nghymru, gan sefydlogi'r sefylifa ariannol ac arwain Cymru i Fenter yr Ifanc Cymru a
Lloegr, sydd bellach yn un corff.

Mae Martin yn gyfrifydd siartredig sydd wedi gweithio yn y sectorau preifat a chyhoeddus,

yn fwyaf diweddar fel Cyfarwyddwr Cyllid ym Mhrifysgol Metropolitan Caerdydd. Mae
hefyd wedi ymwneud ag amryw o bwyllgorau fel cadeirydd, aelod ac ymddiriedolwr.

Tudalen y pecyn 6



Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42 E |te m 4

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 7



Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42 E |te m 5

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 35



Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 48



Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42 E |te m 6

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 51



. Y Pwyllgor Cyllid | Finance Committee

E 1temy27-17 e

Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru
Wales Public Services

Welsh Government
Budgetary Trade-offs:

Looking Forward
to 2021-22

PRIFYSGOL Canolfan
(@EXBIA  Lywodraethiant Cymru

September 2017
(Q2BUFA Wales Governance
Tudalen y pecyn 54 PRIVESNRE Centre




Wales Public Services 2025

Wales Public Services 2025 is hosted by Cardiff Business School and is a unique partnership between Cardiff
University and five national bodies in Wales: the Welsh Local Government Association, SOLACE Wales, the Welsh NHS
Confederation, the Wales Council for Voluntary Action and Community Housing Cymru. Its goal is to provide fiscal,
economic and policy analysis on public services in Wales which is authoritative and independent.

THE WELSH NHS CONFEDERATIC:)N :0
CONFFEDERASIWN GIG CYMRU ¢, °

«\Lﬂ b

’FVA,-V\

**¥**
WLGA < CLILC

~=* Cartrefi Community
7/ Cymunedol | Housing
Cymru Cymru

Cyngor Gweithredu
Gwirfoddol Cymru

WCVa

Wales Council for
Voluntary Action

4 solace

The Wales Governance Centre

The Wales Governance Centre is a research centre that forms part of Cardiff University’s School of Law and Politics
undertaking innovative research into all aspects of the law, politics, government and political economy of Wales, as
well the wider UK and European contexts of territorial governance. A key objective of the Centre is to facilitate and
encourage informed public debate of key developments in Welsh governance not only through its research, but also
through events and postgraduate teaching.

Tudalen y pecyn 55



Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

Author Details

DR DARIA LUCHINSKAYA
Research Associate, Wales Public Services 2025 and Research Fellow at the Institute for Employment
Research, University of Warwick

JOSEPH OGLE
Research Assistant, Wales Public Services 2025

MICHAEL TRICKEY
Programme Director, Wales Public Services 2025

ED GARETH POOLE
Lecturer in Politics and International Relations, Wales Governance Centre at Cardiff University

GUTO IFAN
Research Assistant, Wales Governance Centre at Cardiff University

The authors would like to thank colleagues in the Institute for Fiscal Studies, the Welsh Local Government
Association, the Welsh Government and others who have assisted us. Any errors or omissions are the
responsibility of the authors.

For further information please contact:

Michael Trickey
WPS2025@cardiff.ac.uk
Wales Public Services 2025
Tel: 029 2087 0913

fdalen y pecyn 56
3



Contents

Contents
EXECULIVE SUMIMATIY .ottt ettt sttt et ettt et et et e st et et e s e es e et e sensesees et eneeseesensenteseesanseneeseasensensesensans 5
T INEFOTUCTION ettt ettt et et e e e st et e st e s e es e s e st eseebesseneeseese st eseesessesseseesasse st eseeseseneeseesenseneasesanes 9
2 The Welsh economic and fiscal context — what has changed?.........o e 10
21 The UK fiscal and @CONOMIC CONTEXT ...oouiiiieieiiieieieeeese ettt ettt ese s 10
2.2 Welsh tax devolution and the Welsh Fiscal FrameWOrK ........ccccveeirieerineinieeineeeiessieeeeseesee e 13
3 The impact of austerity so far on Welsh devolved SPending ... 18
31 Welsh Government inCOmMe and QUSTETILY ...ocvciiiiiiiieieiicieeeeetetee ettt be e 18
3.2 Welsh Local Government revenues and spending, 2009-10 t0 2015-16 ......ccooeeiveinnenenieeneneene. 20
4 Envelope fOr the WEISH DUAGET ..ottt ettt b et be s e s seeseebe s enens 24
41 Scenarios for the Welsh budget envelope, 2018-19 10 2021-22 ..ot 24
4.2 Choices and trade-offs for the Welsh BUdQeT ..o 28
5 Scenarios fOr I0CAl GOVEIMIMENT ....c.ooiiiiieieieeetee ettt ettt ettt et et e s b et et st b et eneese s ensenteseebenseneesesansen 35
51 Scenarios for Welsh local government, 2018-19 10 2021-22 .......ooviieioieeeeeeeeeeeeee e 35
5.2 Choices and trade-offs between councils’ service areas, 2018-19 t0 2021-22 ......ccccveevveinnennee 39
B CONCIUSTIONS ..ttt sttt b ettt b ettt bbbttt ettt b ettt st et enebeneas 43
T R EIEINCES .ttt ettt ettt ettt et Rt A Rt AR et R et Rea e e s e R et et e Rt et e s et et et et ene s eseneesesenesenens 44
8 Appendix: Modelling the Welsh Government’s budget to 20271-22 ........ccovreieeirneierieeeeeeeeee e 46
8.1 Modelling UK-level spending allocations t0 2021-22..........oou ettt enens 46
8.2 Modelling the underlying block grants (including the new Needs Based Factor)......cccceveinennee. 47
8.3 Modelling Welsh tax revenues and block grant adjustments .........ccceeereiieeeeenseceeseeeiens 48
8.4 Projecting the Welsh Government’s budget’'s total DEL.........ccooioiiiiieinieceeeeeeeeeeeeveeeenns 49
8.5 Modelling Welsh Government trade-0ffS ..ottt 49
8.6 Modelling Welsh local government BUAGELS .....ccveeiieiieeeeeeeseee e 50

Tudalen y pecyn 57
4



Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

Executive Summary

2018 is a watershed year for devolution in Wales. From this year forward, each annual budget will now
incorporate decisions on Welsh taxes, borrowing for capital expenditure, and any use of a new facility called
the Welsh Reserve. In addition, recent developments at the UK level — the Autumn Statement 2016, the
Spring Budget 2017 and the General Election — each have an impact at the Welsh level through the UK’s
block grant to Wales.

This report sets out the key changes to the UK fiscal context and to Welsh devolution over the past year, and
using this as a basis, runs through a number of public spending scenarios. It demonstrates that current UK
spending plans could result in a further and potentially damaging period of cuts in unprotected services. With
new devolved tax powers expected to have only a limited impact on total spending by 2021-22, decisions
about the future balance between protected and unprotected services are likely to become increasingly
stark and may prompt questions about the affordability of the current range of services.

The economic and fiscal context

« After seven years of fiscal consolidation, the incumbent Chancellor relaxed his target for achieving
a balanced budget to the mid-2020s, providing the Treasury some flexibility which we account for in
this report.

« Although spending plans in the March 2017 UK Budget provided for a modest cash increase,
expenditure per person on public services is still forecast to fall by 4.8 per cent in real terms over the
period between 2017-18 and 2021-22!

« Despite Wales’ new tax powers, UK Government spending decisions will continue to be the dominant
influence on the overall level of devolved spending. The degree of uncertainty at the time of
publication mean that we cannot include a Brexit settlement in our modelling.

Welsh Taxes and the Fiscal Framework

« The new Land Transaction Tax and Landfill Disposals Tax come into effect from 2018 and the Welsh
Rate of Income Tax (WRIT) from 2019. These three devolved taxes, together with business rates but
excluding council tax, comprise around £3.3bn of revenue, approximately 24 per cent of the Welsh
Government’s resource budget.

« After deductions from the Block Grant to take account of devolved taxes, tax devolution is likely to
have only a limited impact on overall spending over the next four years.

« Current Welsh Government policy is that the current income tax rates for Wales will not be
increased for the duration of the current Assembly. Even if this were not the case, varying WRIT
rates by 1p would only generate a 1.5% increase or decrease in the 2019-20 overall Welsh resource
budget under our baseline scenario (assuming no behavioural response).

- The new Needs Based Factor in the Barnett Formula provides more funding for the Welsh Block
Grant for any increase in spending in England than was previously the case, but the scope of this
advantage will be very modest unless there is a marked increase in UK public spending.

1 Office of Budget Responsibility, Economic and Fiscal q'L[Ifdla]Z@ﬁa)y pecyn 58
5



Executive Summary

The impact of austerity on the Welsh Budget so far

« The Welsh Government budget for day-to-day spending on public services (resource spending,
RDEL) decreased by 11.5 per cent in real terms between 2009-10 and 2017-18.2 The Welsh
Government’s budget for investment, or capital spending (CDEL) is 32.4 per cent lower in real terms
in 2017-18 than it was in 2009-10.

- The Welsh Government responded to cuts by, broadly, ‘protecting’ funds for schools, social services
(by way of local government) and, after October 2013, spending on the NHS. These protected
service areas consequently now account for a larger proportion of the total budget. The core NHS
revenue budget increased from 39 per cent of the Welsh Government RDEL budget in 2009-10 to
48 per cent in 2017-18.

« Cuts to councils’ spending have been smaller than in England. On the basis of the most recent
available outturn figures, Welsh Government funding for local government day-to-day spending
(excluding business rates and housing benefit) fell by 14 per cent in real terms between 2009-10
and 2015-16 (£655 million). This was partly offset by a 17 per cent increase (£207 million) in collected
council tax revenues (excluding Council Tax Reduction Scheme). Average Band D council tax rates
rose by 11.6 per cent from 2009-10 to 2015-16.

- Net local authority current total spending on schools decreased by 4 per cent, while spending on
social services increased marginally by 0.6 per cent over the same period.

« There was an overall 23 per cent cut in current spending on all other, ‘non-protected’, local authority

services.

Scenarios for the Welsh Budget envelope 2018-19 to 2021-22

Given the uncertainties of medium-term fiscal policy, this report sets out three main resource budget
scenarios (R1, R2 and R3) for UK public spending from 2018-19 to 2021-22 and their implications for the
total ‘envelope’ of devolved spending in Wales. The scenarios all assume a continued UK Government
commitment to protecting central budgets for the NHS, schools, defence and international development.

- A baseline ‘austerity’ scenario (R1) follows plans announced in the March 2017 budget to 2019-
20, allocates a Wales share of the Treasury’s planned £3.5bn efficiency savings, and assumes UK
departmental spending allocations are uprated for inflation in 2020-21 and 2021-22.

- An ‘easing of austerity’ scenario (R2) follows R1, but cancels the planned £3.5bn efficiency savings,
and builds in 2017 Conservative manifesto spending pledges.

- Lastly, a ‘benchmark’ scenario (R3) protects the 2017-18 allocations in real terms in following years.

All three scenarios would result in continued real terms reductions in the Welsh block for resource
expenditure (as shown in Table E1).

Table E1: Three scenarios for the Welsh block grant for resource expenditure (excluding depreciation) 2017-
18 to 2021-22 (£ millions)

Scenario 201718 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 % change 2017-18 to 2021-22
R1 13,400 13,196 12,998 13,001 12,998 -3.0%
R2 13,400 13,246 13,182 13,261 13,334 -0.5%
R3 13,400 13,332 13,287 13,291 13,288 -0.8%

2 Figures adjusted for the devolution of business rates in Aﬁﬁluejaimoyc@@eywﬁsgﬁpril 2013..

6




Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

Scenario R1, which is based on current UK plans, would result in a further 3% cut in the Welsh block grant.
Cuts in scenarios R2 and R3 would be much smaller, at just 0.5 per cent for R2, resulting in an extra £300
million for the Welsh Government in 2021-22 than would be the case in scenario R1.2 But in all three
scenarios, the block grant in 2021-22 would still lower be than in 2017-18.

Future choices and Welsh budget trade-offs

The Welsh Government is likely to face significant challenges in its funding of public services over the next four
years as pressures continue to grow. For each of the three scenarios for the Welsh resource budget above (R1-
R3), we consider four scenarios for Welsh Government decisions (W1-W4) on allocating these resources in the
next four years. Each scenario considers a various basket of different protections for the NHS, social services
and schools and how these affect ‘unprotected’ services and are summarised in figure E1:

Figure E1: Cuts to Welsh Government spending by service area (2017-18 to 2021-22) in the baseline scenario
R1, by Welsh Government spending scenario

W4:3% NHS increases,
4% adult SASS

(CG supportto LG)
W?2: Protect NHS, increases, protect rest
schools, and social of social care, protect
W 1: Protect NHS services (SASS) W3:3% NHS increases schools
15%
10%
5%
0, — —
0% - - - -
-5%
-10%
-15%
-20%
-25%
-30%
. Core NHS Local government Other . Total

Any increases in spending for protected areas would result in future cuts for unprotected services. In

the scenario with the most protections, W4 — which increases adult social services to match the Health
Foundation’s (2016) estimates of increasing cost and demand pressures and protects the rest of social
services and schools in real terms — cuts to unprotected services rise to 27 per cent (Figure E1). Reductions
at that level could have profound implications for the sustainability of some unprotected services.

If protected budgets are maintained in real terms rather than increased (as in scenarios W1 and W2), the
impact on unprotected services is more limited. But in these circumstances, NHS and social care budgets
would not be keeping pace with cost and demand pressures.

Local government budgetary trade-offs to 2021-22

Assuming the baseline resource budget scenario, modelled changes in total local government revenues

between 2017-18 and 2021-22 range from -0.6 per cent to -10.4 per cent, depending on changes in Welsh

Government support. At the local level, we consider the following three social services spending scenarios:
S1: Councils do not protect any area of spending from cuts, nor privilege any in the event of a budget

increase.

3 To build a full picture of the overall Welsh resource budget, we assume that the Welsh Government RDEL changes at the same rate as the Welsh

block grant and then add in business rate revenues. Tudalen y pecyn 60
7



Executive Summary

S2: As S1, with councils protecting spending on education in real terms at its 2017-18 level.

S3: As S1, with councils protecting spending on education and social care in real terms at its 2017-18
level.

If councils continue to protect education and personal social services in real terms (S3), there will be further
cuts unprotected services on top of the cuts so far. Figure E2 illustrates the impact on specific budgets.

Figure E2: Cuts to local government services under scenario S3, 2009-10 to 2021-22

10%

U ~
g2 0% —
£9
Lo -10%
c N
£
o £ -20%
[T
2
‘—; T -30%
8 ow  -40%
-50%
Transport & Roads Culture, Sport & Heritage Education & Personal
social services
. % change 2015-16 (outturn) % change 2021-22 (projected)

Conclusion

Looking forward to 2021-22 and beyond, the pressures on public services of an ageing population will
intensify. Although health and social care are at the heart of these pressures, other services such as housing,
transport, leisure and culture have a key role in an ageing society and are important to the seven Future
Generations outcomes. Many of these unprotected services have already seen significant cuts in local
spending.

Given the current fiscal trajectory, it is hard to see how Wales can square the circle of reducing funds and
growing demand as it goes into the 2020s. Without increases in the overall envelope for the Welsh Budget,
and with efficiencies on their own unlikely to be sufficient to bridge the funding gap, difficult decisions about
what services are affordable are likely to come increasingly to the fore.

The new tax powers and flexibilities set out in the Fiscal Framework will strengthen the budget possibilities
available to the Welsh Government but the fiscal policy of the UK Government will continue to be the biggest
determinant by far of Welsh Government total spending.

The issues raised here reflect long term structural challenges. A relaxation in UK Government fiscal policy
would make a difference, but the long-term growth in demand and cost pressures will require a long term
response.

Tudalen y pecyn 61
8



Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

1. Introduction

This report, by the Wales Public Services 2025 Programme based at Cardiff Business School has been
produced in partnership with Cardiff University’s Wales Governance Centre (WGC). It looks at the choices
and options for the Welsh Budget over the remainder of the term of the Fifth Assembly (to 2021-22) based on
a number of scenarios. It follows a study commissioned by Wales Public Services 2025 from the Institute for
Fiscal Studies (IFS), published in September 2016 which looked at the challenges for the Welsh Budget over
the period 2015-16 to 2019-20 in the light of current fiscal policy and austerity (Phillips and Simpson, 2016).
We gratefully acknowledge the continued advice and encouragement of the IFS in building on this work and
their generosity in allowing us to draw on their modelling.

There have been significant changes since the IFS study. At the UK level, the Autumn Statement 2016
and the Spring Budget 2017 set out the fiscal policies of a new Chancellor. The 2017 General Election has
transformed the political environment, including a minority government dependent on a 2-year £1 billion
confidence and supply agreement with the Democratic Unionist Party. And the task of negotiating a Brexit
settlement with the European Union and within the UK looks increasingly formidable.

But autumn 2017 will also mark the start of a new era for fiscal policy in Wales. The forthcoming Welsh
Budget and its successors will for the first time encompass new powers on devolved taxes (including the
potential for new made-in-Wales taxes). The first new taxes come into effect in April 2018 and the partial
devolution of income tax expected to follow in April 2019.

Alongside, a new Fiscal Framework agreement (December 2016) between the UK and Welsh Governments
will come into effect, changing the way in which the UK’s block grant to Wales is calculated and introducing
new flexibilities for the Welsh Budget over borrowing for capital and the creation of the Welsh Reserve. This
report draws on, but does not duplicate, a recent analysis by the WGC and IFS on the fiscal framework (see
Poole et al., 2017).

These new powers will expand the existing scope for decisions on tax and public spending in Wales, widen
the range of choices about financing devolved public services and open up a discussion about strengthening
the future tax base.

They represent a major step in the devolution journey although their impact is likely to take time to build. For
the period of this study at least, the fiscal and economic policy of the UK Government will remain a dominant
factor in determining the money available for devolved services in Wales.

Section Two of the report discusses the wider UK fiscal and economic environment and also considers the
potential budgetary impact of the latest stage in devolved public finances ushered in by the new Fiscal
Framework and the Welsh Rate of Income Tax. Section Three then looks at the impact of austerity on public
spending, both at the Welsh Government and local government level, since 2009-10.

Section Four projects the overall envelope for the Welsh Government budget up to 2021-22 by exploring three
scenarios for the Welsh block grant from the UK Government, taking account of the new Fiscal Framework

as well as Wales’ new and existing tax powers. The Section then sets out a range of options for the Welsh
Government’s expenditure on public services over the next four years and the choices and trade-offs it faces.

Finally, Section Five considers the implications of the preceding scenarios on Welsh local government
finances and budgetary pressures, as well as the implications for certain service areas resulting from specific
trade-offs at the local government level. The report concludes by summarising the main policy implications
arising from the scenarios.

Tudalen y pecyn 62
9



The Welsh economic and fiscal context - what has changed?

2. The Welsh economic and fiscal context — what has changed?

Since September 2016 a number of fiscal events have occurred. The Autumn Statement (November 2016) and
the Spring Budget (March 2017) have set out the UK Government’s position on funding public services, which
have had moderate implications for Wales through the Barnett formula. Moreover, the UK underwent a General
Election in May 2017, and the Conservative manifesto (May 2017) set out a number of policy directions at the
UK level that are likely to have implications at the Welsh level as well. In this Section, we look at the main fiscal
changes that have taken place since September 2016 and their implications for Wales. We also consider the
impact to the overall spending envelope available to the Welsh Government, in particular the implications for
the Welsh Budget of the newly devolved taxes and the change to the Barnett Formula arising from the new
Fiscal Framework Agreement between the Welsh and UK Governments.

Tax devolution and the new Fiscal Framework will both give the Welsh Government significant new
flexibilities and tools while also making progress towards ‘Fairer funding’. But they are unlikely to have more
than a limited impact on the overall size of the Welsh Budget in the next four years. UK-level policy decisions

that affect the size of the block grant through Barnett ‘consequentials’ still possess the dominant role.

21 The UK fiscal and economic context
Despite the devolution of selected taxes to Wales (discussed in Section 2.2), UK Government fiscal strategy

will continue to be the dominant influence on the overall level of Welsh Government spending.

Welsh budget planning is taking place against a background of uncertainty over the direction of UK fiscal and
economic policy including, but not limited to, Brexit. The Chancellor’s forthcoming autumn fiscal event should
provide greater clarity.

The analysis below builds on recent reports by the Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR) and IFS, including
OBR forecasts as appropriate.

211 March 2017 Budget plans

The UK Government has further to go in achieving its objective of bringing its finances into balance. The
original target date of 2015 has been put back several times, partly due to the sluggish performance of the
UK economy. The OBR forecasts that on current plans the UK Government will still be borrowing £16.8 billion
a year in 2021-22 in cash terms (£15.7bn in 2017-18 prices), or 0.7 per cent of GDP (OBR, 2017a).

Tudalen y pecyn 63
10



Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

Figure 2.1: UK budget deficit (public sector net borrowing) as a percentage of GDP
12.0
10.0

8.0

6.0
4.
0.0

Outturn Forecast

per cent of GDP
o

o

2009-102010-11 2011-12/2012-13/2013-14/2014-152015-16 2016-17/2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-212021-22

Source: OBR Economic and Fiscal Outlook March 2017, Historical official forecasts, public sector net borrowing as a percentage of GDP.

The current Chancellor, Philip Hammond, relaxed the Government’s fiscal rules in his first Autumn Statement
(2016). Under the new fiscal mandates, the goal was for the budget to return to surplus within the ‘next’
parliament. While there was some borrowing to fund capital projects, overall the austerity programme
remained firmly in place, and £3.5 billion of ‘efficiency savings’ remained pencilled in for 2019-20.

Although the March 2017 Budget increased departmental resource spending (day-to-day spending on
services), including more money for social care, spending per person is forecast to fall in real terms by 4.8 per
cent over the period 2017-18 to 2021-22 on top of reductions implemented since 2010 (OBR, 2017a, pp. 136-7).

On current plans and forecasts, spending on public services in 2019-20 could well fall as a share of national
income to its lowest point since 2003-04 (Emmerson, 2017a). This is in a context of weak UK economic
performance, including flat productivity and flat real average earnings growth.* The UK Government

has ‘protected’ some areas of spending, including health, central spending on schools, international
development and defence. But even spending on health, one of the few areas which is increasing in real
terms, was not keeping pace with growth in the economy, falling by 0.2 per cent of GDP between 2010-11
and 2015-16.5

There has been better news on capital spending which is forecast to rise from £49.8 billion in 2017-18 to
£68.7 billion in 2021-22, reflecting the role which the UK Government sees for capital spending in stimulating
economic recovery and growth.

4 See, for example, Cribb (2017).

5 See OBR (2017b). Tudalen y pecyn 64
il



The Welsh economic and fiscal context - what has changed?

2.1.2 Fiscal strategy following the 2017 General Election

Pending the autumn fiscal event in 2017, options for future fiscal strategy being discussed in the financial
press include a continuation of austerity, a softening of austerity and a strategy based on low taxation and
low spending.

The Conservative Party’s 2017 general manifesto pledged to raise the threshold for the standard and higher
rates of income tax by 2020 as part of a wider commitment to tax reduction for families and businesses
(Conservative Party, 2017). But the manifesto also committed to a balanced budget by the mid-2020s which
the Chancellor has subsequently reiterated, although he has also noted the public’s weariness with ‘seven
years of hard slog’.

Current plans do not set out how the remaining deficit will be erased after 2021-22: forecasts for the
economy suggest that a mix of further tax rises and spending cuts might be necessary. But extending the
target date to around 2025 gives the UK Government more room for manoeuvre over the medium term.

As outlined in the remainder of this section, the issue will be how the Chancellor treads the delicate path
between spending pressures, the commitment to eradicating the deficit and the fragility of public finances,
including their sensitivity to inflation and small shifts in economic growth, compounded by the uncertainties
associated with Brexit.

2.1.3 Pressures and uncertainties

The largest spending pressures arise from the implications of an ageing population and rising care costs (health
care, social care and state pension), detailed in the OBR’s 2017 Fiscal Risks Report (2017b).6 But the funding
needs of other services, for example in response to crowding in UK prisons, are also being put forward.

The Conservative manifesto made few spending commitments, the most significant one relevant to devolved
services in terms of scale being an increase in English NHS spending “by a minimum of £8 billion in real
terms over the next five years”, i.e. by 2022-23. How this increase would be phased over the five years was
not specified, but this would be equivalent to 1.2 per cent a year more in real terms. The Health Foundation
(Watt and Roberts, 2016) and others contrast this increase with the historical average increase of 4 per cent
a year and warn of a continuing and significant ‘funding gap’. The manifesto also drew attention to a modest
commitment on schools funding, which works out as a negligible change in real terms over the next 5 years.
We consider the possible implications of these commitments for the Welsh budget in the next section.

Other cost pressures look likely to put public service budgets under strain. The public sector pay freeze
followed by the pay cap, under which public sector pay scales can rise on average by 1 per cent each year
up to and including 2019-20, has been a crucial element in enabling public services to mitigate the impact of
austerity. For example, the OBR identifies the public sector pay cap as a key factor in the real terms growth
in NHS spending. As the debate over this summer has demonstrated, the cap on public sector pay is coming
under increasing pressure. The IFS has calculated that increasing public sector pay in line with private sector
pay would add £9 billion to costs by 2021-22 (Emmerson, 2017b). The current rise in inflation following the
depreciation in the pound exchange rate will add to the pressure although this is expected to fall back in the
medium term.

6 See for example http://cdn.budgetresponsibiIity‘org.uk/JuWaFl@a‘_Syslﬁ@Cyn 65
12



Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

2.1.4 Brexit

The considerable uncertainty about the details of any final Brexit settlement, including the length and nature
of any transitional arrangements, and its impact on the UK economy makes it difficult to assess the fiscal
implications. The actively contested debate among economists reflects very different analyses, although
there is a widely-shared view that the impact on the economy and public finances is more likely to be
negative than positive over the short-to-medium term. Even a modest impact on economic growth either way
could have significant implications for public spending.

The OBR (2017b) currently assumes that any reduction in expenditure transfers to EU institutions, net of the
UK rebate, would be fully recycled into extra domestic spending. It is not possible to assess the impact of any
‘divorce bill’ although its one-off nature should not pose a big threat to fiscal sustainability.

In 2016-17 the UK’s net public sector contribution to the EU (after the £4.8bn rebate from the EU and after
£4.1 billion of public sector receipts from the EU) was estimated at £8.1 billion in cash terms, or around 1.0 per
cent of the UK’s overall spending in that year.” Although this may be relatively small in the context of the UK
Budget as a whole, what happens to the UK’s current contribution to the EU will be highly relevant to the
Welsh economy and public spending.

The Welsh Government has identified that in total Wales receives around £680 million in EU funding annually,
mostly receipts under the Common Agricultural Policy (CAP) and Structural Funds along with other smaller,
albeit economically significant, pots of funding.® It argues that the baseline of the Block Grant payment

for Wales must be re-adjusted, at the point of exit from the EU, to reflect the loss of funds and taking into
account funding which Wales would have otherwise reasonably expected from EU sources.

The Conservatives manifesto committed to using the structural fund money that comes back to the UK to
create a United Kingdom Shared Prosperity Fund, specifically designed to reduce inequalities between
communities but not necessarily delineated on a territorial basis. What this would mean for Wales is not yet
clear and given the other uncertainties, we have not included post-Brexit options in our scenarios.

2.2 Welsh tax devolution and the Welsh Fiscal Framework

While certain local taxation powers, such as council tax, and since 2015-16, business rates (hon-domestic
rates) are already devolved, tax powers at the national level are only now being devolved to Wales. This

has meant that although Wales has been responsible for key spending areas such as health, social services
and education, there was no mechanism by which the Welsh Government could be accountable to its
taxpayers for overall spending levels. In the next few years, Wales will receive new tax powers: the new Land
Transaction Tax and Landfill Disposals Tax to come into effect from 2018-19 and the Welsh Rate of Income
Tax from 2019-20 (at the earliest). This means that the devolved Welsh Government taxes are:

« Business rates (non-domestic rates, or NDR),®° which have been fully devolved since 2015-16, collected
by local authorities on behalf of the Welsh Government and distributed back to them through the
revenue support grant formulae. The ‘multiplier’ is set annually by the Welsh Government, typically
linked to changes in the RPI. The rateable value of business properties is subject to periodic
revaluation, the last (and inevitably controversial) revaluation taking effect in 2017-18.

7 The EU figures are taken from (UK Parliament research briefing Number CBP 7886, see http://researchbriefings.parliament.uk/ResearchBriefing/
Summary/CBP-7886). The overall UK spending, or total managed expenditure, was at £772.8bn in 2016-17 (cash terms).

8 See Welsh Government (2017a) paper, ‘Securing Wales’ future: Transition from the European Union to a new relationship with Europe.

9 We will refer to non-domestic rates using both termsTFmﬂa[lserpytiﬂev@Wg@@R’ in charts and tables, to save space.
13



The Welsh economic and fiscal context - what has changed?

« Land Transaction Tax (formerly Stamp Duty Land Tax) and Landfill Disposals Tax (formerly Landfill
Tax) will be devolved from April 2018.

« The Welsh Rate of Income Tax (WRIT) will take effect from April 2019, enabling the Welsh
Government to vary the rate at which tax is paid by Welsh taxpayers on 10 percentage points of
each tax band levied on earned income except for savings and dividend income. Current Welsh
Government policy is that the current income tax rates for Wales will not be increased for the
duration of the current Assembly.

The Aggregates Levy, the devolution of which was a discussion point over the last year, was not devolved
in the Wales Act 2017 (unlike the Scotland Act 2016). The Aggregates Levy yields only a modest source of
revenue, around £34m in cash terms each year.

Assuming current policy, the Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR) forecasts that revenues from the

Welsh Rate of Income Tax and Land Transaction Tax will grow modestly over the forecast period, while in
contrast, revenues from the Welsh Landfill Disposals Tax are forecast to decrease due to improvements and
efficiencies in recycling and waste management.°

Welsh devolved taxes, including business rates, are expected to generate approximately £3.5 billion in
annual revenues in 2021-22. While this might look like an increase of £237m for the Welsh Government’s
budget, it should be remembered that the Welsh block grant will be adjusted to take the devolution of these
taxes into account. Overall, because Welsh tax revenues are forecast to grow slightly faster than the block
grant adjustment, the Welsh budget would be £14m better off in real terms by 2021-22 than under current
arrangements (see Box 2.1)M

Table 21: Welsh devolved tax forecast summary, 2017-18 to 2021-22, £million, 2017-18 prices

201718 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22
Income tax 1,950 1,962 1,991 2,037 2,097
SDLT 243 259 273 296 320
Landfill tax 28 25 22 21 21
NDR 1,059 1,023 1,043 1,061 1,080
Total 3,280 3,269 3,330 3,415 3,517

Source: Income tax, SLDT, Landfill tax: OBR March 2017 Devolved Tax Forecast, Table 1.4, p. 7; NDR: PESA July 2017, except for 2015-
16, taken from the Welsh Second Supplementary Budget 2015-16, and for 2020-21 and 2021-22, which is projected forward based on
the assumption that NDR revenue will grow at 1.7 per cent in real terms (i.e. to continue to grow at its average growth rate 2016-17 to

2019-20).

In the context of a total Welsh resource budget of over £13 billion, Welsh tax receipts would have to increase
significantly to generate a noticeable impact on the total amount available to fund public services. For
example, to generate a 1 per cent increase in the overall Welsh resource budget in 2017-18, the devolved
portion of income tax revenues would need to increase by 7 per cent: a 0.7 percentage point rate increase
for each income tax band assuming no behavioural response. Business rate receipts would need to increase

10 It should be noted that OBR forecasts for the Welsh Land Transaction Tax (stamp duty land tax) revenues are forecast to grow slightly faster than
comparable England and Northern Ireland revenues (9% vs. 7% for England and Northern Ireland (E&NI) over 2017-18 to 2021-22). Under the terms
of the Welsh Fiscal Framework Agreement, the Block Grant Adjustment (BGA) changes from year to year according to what happens to equiva-
lent UK government revenues in England & Northern Ireland (E&NI). If Welsh tax revenue grows at a differential rate to comparable revenues, this
would imply that the BGA would not accurately reflect changes to the Welsh Government budget. For a further discussion of this issue see Poole
et al. (2017) and Phillips and Simpson (2016).

11 A further consideration is the new Needs Based Factor (NBF), which will also affect the Welsh budget. Applying the NBF to the published March
2017 budget allocations means that by 2021-22, the Welsh budget would be around £40m higher than would otherwise be the case (see Box 2.1

for more information). TUdalen y pecyn 67
14



Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

by 14 per cent to achieve the same increase in the resource budget.?

The majority of attention will naturally focus on the Welsh rates of income tax. Although changing Welsh rates
of income tax bands by 1p leads to an increase or a decrease in the Welsh overall resource budget of about
£200 million (assuming no behavioural response), the Welsh Government has committed to maintain the
current income tax rate for the duration of the current Assembly term (until May 2021).®* We do not consider
the impact of changing the Welsh Rate of Income Tax here, although we plan to examine the role of the
Welsh devolved taxes more fully in a later report.

The new Fiscal Framework, now coming into effect, puts in place ‘fair, sustainable and coherent funding
arrangements across all the Welsh Government’s tax and spending responsibilities’™ A detailed analysis of
the agreement, including its relationship to the Holtham Commission and the pressure for ‘fair funding’, can
be found in Poole et al. (2017). The implications for the Welsh block are summarised in the text box below.
The changes are not expected to be materially significant up to 2021-22.

The Framework has two ways of affecting the Welsh block though in both cases only in relation to
incremental change: the Block Grant Adjustment (BGA) and the Needs Based Factor (NBF).

The BGA is a mechanism for adjusting the Welsh block grant in the light of UK tax decisions, for example
compensating if higher income tax thresholds reduced Welsh income tax revenues. These arrangements are
not projected to affect the overall Welsh budget or our budget scenarios materially over the period to 2021-22.

As a result of the devolution of taxes to Wales and the shift of population-specific revenue risk to Welsh
policymakers, the direction of Welsh Government tax policy and the performance of Welsh tax revenues will
become very important to the Welsh Government budget in a way that it has not been before.

The second impact is that additions to the Welsh Block generated through the Barnett Formula following
changes in UK spending plans will be increased by the new Needs Based Factor of 1.05 (until such time as
Welsh spending per head converges down to the new funding floor, unlikely to occur during the period covered
by this study (see Poole et. al, 2017). The impact will be modest as long as UK spending grows slowly.

The Fiscal Framework also establishes the Welsh Reserve, including a transfer into the Reserve arising from
the devolution of business rates, and provision for borrowing for capital projects. These will strengthen the
Welsh Government’s ability to manage its finances but have not been factored into this analysis.

12 This is calculated as follows. A 1% increase in a value, V, is equivalent to an increase in V by amount x, such that x = 0.01V. If V is £14.41bn, it would
need to increase by £0.1441bn to increase by 1%. If 2017-18 NDR revenues were to increase by £0.1441bn this would be a 14.2% increase to initial
2017-18 NDR revenue levels.

13 See Welsh rates of income tax FAQs, p. 4 in Welsh Government (2017a).

14 See Welsh Government (2017b) for the Fiscal Framevrqr}daiaewry pecyn 68
15



The Welsh economic and fiscal context - what has changed?

Box 2.1: How the Welsh Government’s New Fiscal Framework will impact the budget

In December 2016, an agreement between the Welsh and UK governments outlined forthcoming
changes to the Welsh Government’s fiscal framework. This box explains the major agreed reforms and
how they impact the modelling of the Welsh Budget in this report.

From 2018-19, the Stamp Duty Land Tax and the Landfill tax will be replaced by two new devolved taxes
in Wales, and from 2019-20 (at the earliest) a £2 billion share of income taxes (a 10p share from each
income tax band) will come under Welsh Government control. The two governments agreed on how the
Welsh block grant will be adjusted to reflect the devolution of these taxes.

An initial baseline adjustment will be made to the Welsh block grant reflecting the revenues foregone by
the UK Government at the point of devolution, ensuring neither government is initially better or worse
off. Future changes to this block grant adjustment (BGA) will be determined by changes in equivalent UK
government taxes, according to the following calculation (known as the Comparable Model):

Cash change in equivalent UK
government tax in England X Comparability factor X Population ratio
& Northern Ireland

The change in the BGA will therefore be a Welsh population share of changes in revenues in the rest of
the UK, multiplied by a ‘comparability factor’, reflecting the Wales’ relative tax-capacity.

The linking of the BGA to UK government revenues has some important implications. The effect on the
Welsh Government budget will depend on the relative performance of Welsh taxes. If Welsh taxes grow
more quickly than elsewhere in the UK, the Welsh budget reaps the rewards, and vice versa. It also
insulates the Welsh budget from UK-wide economic risks. For example, Welsh revenues could fall in a
recession, but if UK government revenues fall too, then a fall in the BGA would mitigate the effect on
the Welsh budget. These arrangements are not projected to materially affect the budget scenarios over
coming years (see Appendix). Devolved taxes are forecast to slightly outgrow modelled BGAs, resulting
in £14 million more for the Welsh Government over the years 2018-19 to 2021-22.

The second key reform outlined in the agreement is the introduction of a new “Needs-Based Factor”
(NBF) in the Barnett formula, from 2018-19 onwards. Increments to the Welsh Government’s block grant
will now be calculated as a product of the following calculation for every UK Government department:

Cash change in Department’s Welsh to English
X Needs-Based Factor
department’s DEL

comparability factor population ratio

Existing Barnett formula New element

The NBF will be set at 105% initially, meaning any increase to the block grant will now be 5% higher than
was previously the case. This is designed to slow convergence in relative Welsh funding towards the
level in England, and below the Holtham Commission’s estimate of relative need, as happened during
the first decade of devolution. Exactly how much extra funding this reform will have on the Welsh budget
over coming years depends on how quickly spending grows in England — the greater the growth in
English expenditure, the greater the value of the extra 5% to the Welsh budget.




Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

Due to slow growth in spending by UK departments in England, the NBF will also only have a limited
effect on Welsh budgets over the years considered in this report, although the precise number will
depend on the revenue scenario selected. Under our baseline revenue scenario R1, the NBF means
Welsh ‘consequentials’ will be £38 million higher in real terms by 2021-22 than would otherwise have

been the case.

When relative spending per head converges to 115% of the level in England, the NBF will increase to
115%. However, this is unlikely to happen in the short to medium-term.

Tudalen y pecyn 70
17



The impact of austerity so far on Welsh devolved spending

3. The impact of austerity so far on Welsh devolved spending

In this section, we consider the historical changes to the Welsh Government’s budget since 2009-10,
including its budget for resource and capital spending on public services. We also look at the changes to
spending on public services at the Welsh Government level, and at the local government level. Readers
familiar with the Welsh fiscal context can skip to the next section where we consider future scenarios for the
Welsh Government budget.

Through the eight years of austerity so far, the Welsh Government and local government have responded

to the squeeze on budgets partly through a series of implicit trade-offs, protecting the NHS, social
services and schools and reducing spending in real terms on other ‘non-protected’ services, in some
cases by over 20 per cent.

31 Welsh Government income and austerity

Since devolution the Welsh Government has been largely funded through a block grant from the UK
Government through the Barnett Formula. Business rates were also devolved to Wales in 2015-16. Reflecting
its policy commitment to erase the deficit, the Conservative government set out its plans for funding
allocated to Resource and Capital Departmental Expenditure Limits (DELs) to different departments, including
the block grants to Wales, Scotland, and Northern Ireland, in the 2015 Spending Review. But since its
publication, the March 2016 Budget, Autumn Statement 2016 and March 2017 Budget have each allocated
additional spending to different UK departments, resulting in extra funds (‘consequentials’) to the Welsh
block grant via the Barnett formula. The March 2017 UK Budget reflects these allocations.

The Welsh Government’s resource budget (RDEL) that provides for day-to-day services fell by 11.5 per cent
in real terms between 2009-10 and 2017-18, adjusting for business rates devolution, council tax benefit
localisation, and using the Welsh Government’s First Supplementary Budget 2017-18. Budgeted capital
expenditure (CDEL) was cut significantly in the first phase of austerity but recovered slightly in 2014-15. The
capital budget for 2017-18 remains 32.4 per cent lower in real terms than in 2009-10.

Table 3.1: Budgeted Resource and Capital Departmental Expenditure Limits allocated to Welsh Government,
£millions

Resource DEL Capital DEL
2009-10 15,931 2,204
2010-1 15,660 1,953
2011-12 14,742 1,534
201213 14,462 1,413
2013-14 14,482 1,405
2014-15 14,306 1,567
2015-16 14,243 1,603
2016-17 14,224 1,471
2017-18* 14,099 1,489
% change, 2009-10 & 2016-17 -10.7% -33.2%
% change, 2009-10 & 2017-18* -11.5% -32.4%

Note: The numbers for RDEL include non-domestic rates from 2015-16, and include the council tax benefit adjustment in 2009-10 to 2012-13.

Source: Welsh Government second supplementary budgets, except for 2017-18 which is taken from the first supplementary budget. It
should therefore be noted that first supplementary budgets are often smaller than final allocations because money is held back to be
allocated in second supplementary budgets. 2017-18 prices.

Tudaleny pecyn 71
18



Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

The Welsh Government responded to cuts in the Welsh resource block grant by, broadly, ‘protecting’ funds
for schools, social services (by way of local government) and, after October 2013, spending on the NHS.
Consequently, these protected service areas now account for a noticeably larger proportion of the total
budget. For example, the core NHS budget (sum of total NHS delivery and total Health Central Budgets)
accounted for 39 per cent of the Welsh Government RDEL budget in 2009-10 and 48 per cent in 2017-18 (see
Figure 3.1).

Figure 3.1: Historic trend in the Welsh Government RDEL and Core NHS as a proportion of the RDEL

16,500 60.0%

16,000 50.0%

e

(7]

g 5
: z
® o
15,500 g
8 / 40.0% f;
~ (]
& 15,000 %
¢ 30.0% =
Z 14,500 3
e} -
& 8
g 20.0% 2
W 14,000 &
4 I
G . Z
o 13,500 10.0% g
= o

13,000 0.0%
B S S
Q N N N N N N N N
> > > > > > > > >
RDEL and NDR (adjusted, £m) = Core NHS as % of Welsh RDEL+NDR

Note: The Welsh Government RDEL allocated to MEGs has been adjusted for council tax benefit (added on to pre-reform years
2009-10 to 2012-13) and for non-domestic rates (added on from 2015-16 onwards). Core NHS includes NHS Delivery and Health
Central Budgets, except for 2009-10, when Health Central Budget figures are not available. Source: Welsh Government second
supplementary budgets, except for 2017-18 which is taken from the first supplementary budget. It should therefore be noted that first
supplementary budgets are often smaller than final allocations as money is held back to allocate in second supplementary budgets.
2017-18 prices.

These protections were accompanied by a range of significant cuts to ‘non-protected’ services, including a
23 per cent cut in funding for local government services outside of social services and education.

The impact of these reductions has been augmented by a range of cost pressures, including various
changes to pensions and other employment costs. An offsetting factor to these pressures has been the
public sector pay cap that has been in place since 2010-11. However, the public sector pay cap has been
coming under considerable pressure in the UK. In Scotland, the 1% public sector pay cap is being lifted and
public sector pay will now be indexed to the cost of living. The IFS has calculated that increasing public
sector pay in line with private sector pay would add £9 billion to costs by 2021-22 (Emmerson, 2017b). The
Welsh Government has estimated that an additional 1 per cent pay award would cost around £100 million
(Davies, 2017).

Tudalen y pecyn 72
19



The impact of austerity so far on Welsh devolved spending

3.2 Welsh Local Government revenues and spending, 2009-10 to 2015-16

Publicly funded services, otherwise known as net service spending, are financed at the local government level
through three main sources of revenue: Welsh Government grants (specific grants earmarked for particular
services plus the general Revenue Support Grant - RSG), council tax and business rates® In 2017-18, across
the 22 Welsh unitary authorities, 66 per cent of budgeted income came from the formula grant share (business
rates plus RSG), 14 per cent from the specific grant share, and 19 per cent from the council tax share.®

Figure 3.2 summarises the changes to each of these revenue sources at the all-Wales level over the

recent period of austerity (2009-10 to 2015-16). The highest cash change occurred with respect to Welsh
Government grants, which declined by 14 per cent (£655m in 2017-18 prices). Put in the context of net
service spending, the decline in Welsh Government grants was significantly larger than the total value of
spending on older adult social care in Wales according to the latest available revenue outturn data (2015-
16).”” Collected council tax (i.e. excluding council tax benefit, now the Council Tax Reduction Scheme - CTRS)
showed a marked increase of 17 per cent (15 per cent including CTRS payments) between 2009-10 and
2015-16, equivalent to £207m (£215m including CTRS payments). Revenues from business rates remained
broadly flat over the period, increasing by just 0.9 per cent in real terms.” Rises in locally-sourced revenues
were therefore not sufficient to fully compensate authorities for reductions in Welsh Government grant
support, leaving a net revenue deficit of £432m in 2015-16 relative to 2009-10. In service terms, this is similar
to the value of total local authority spending on environmental initiatives and planning, housing (exclusive of
housing benefit) and transport services combined in 2015-16.

Figure 3.2: Sources of local government revenues, 2009-10 to 2015-16 (2017-18 prices)

5.0
. 45
S
« 4.0
]
5 3.5
2
> 3.0
i)
3
g 25
c
2 20
g
S 15
S
o
g 1.0
©
= 05

0.0

NDR Council tax (inc. CTRS) Welsh Govt grants
Il 2009-10 2015-16

Source: Financing of gross revenue expenditure data (available here: https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Local-Government/
Finance/Revenue/Financing/financingofgrossrevenueexpenditure-by-authority) and in-year council tax collection data (available here:
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Local-Government/Finance/Council-Tax/Collection/inyearcounciltax-by-billingauthority).

15 Please note that all figures referring to Welsh Government grants exclude, for the purpose of this analysis, revenues accruing to Welsh unitary
authorities pertaining to housing benefit which is sent directly to Welsh councils from DWP to match demand.

16 Excluding reserve allocations. See financing of gross revenue expenditure data, available here: https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Local-
Government/Finance/Revenue/Financing/financingofgrossrevenueexpenditure-by-sourceoffunding.

17 In 2015-16, the total net service spend among local authorities in Wales on older adult social care services came to £572m (2017-18 prices).

18 In Wales, annual increases in NDR, also known as Business Rates, are set by the Welsh Government with reference to a specific multiplier.
Normally the multiplier is set according to the Retail Price Index (RPI), which explains why we see a broadly flat real terms trend over the period
2009-10 to 2015-16. Indeed, the 0.9% rise reported reflects the GDP deflator series used in this text. For more information please refer to the

following source: http://gov‘waIes/topics/locaIgovernmerWdﬁxlneﬁgSWﬁr@eyﬁsFﬂ@gzen.
20



Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

Changes to the structure of local government revenues were not uniform across Wales. Figure 3.3 shows the
relative contribution of each revenue source to the change in local authority revenues per head for Wales

as a whole, as well as for the two Welsh NUTS2 statistical sub-regions (West Wales and the Valleys and

East Wales).® While the change in NDR has been negligible across Wales, reductions in the level of Welsh
Government grant support per head in 2015-16 relative to 2009-10 were greater in West Wales and the
Valleys than in East Wales, although revenues in the latter region fell from a lower initial base in 2009-10 as
can be seen from Figure 3.3. Indeed, despite some convergence between the regions, grant revenues per
head in West Wales and the Valleys remained higher than East Wales in 2015-16.

Figure 3.3: Contribution of revenue sources to the overall change in local government revenues per head,
2009-10 to 2015-16 (2017-18 prices)

West Wales and the Valleys East Wales Wales
100 1700
K] .
o 50 o
2 1600
= -
[} 0 ©
o ©
B 1500 2
52 50 @
c o o
X 1400 @
© 9 -100 =
= g
g2 1300 ©
S o -150 £
£8 3
g N 500 1200 =
c 0
H 9]
S 250 1100 =
w
-300 1000
£ Change Council Tax per head (LHA) B £ Change Welsh Govt grants per head (LHA)
£ Change NDR per head (LHA) A Welsh Govt grants per head, 2015-16 (RHA)

@ Welsh Govt grants per head, 2009-10 (RHA)

Source: Financing of gross revenue expenditure data (available here: https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Local-Government/
Finance/Revenue/Financing/financingofgrossrevenueexpenditure-by-authority) and in-year council tax collection data (available here:
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Local-Government/Finance/Council-Tax/Collection/inyearcounciltax-by-billingauthority).

In addition to seeing larger declines in Welsh Government grant support per head, West Wales and the Valleys
was also the region with the highest per person growth in council tax revenues. Between 2009-10 and 2015-
16, total council tax revenues per person grew by 13 per cent compared to 11 per cent in East Wales, although
revenues still remained higher in East Wales given its larger number of Band D equivalent dwellings per head
of population.?° In 2009-10, 17.9 per cent of all local authority revenues in West Wales and the Valleys derived
from council tax, compared with 23.6 per cent in East Wales. In 2015-16, these shares increased to 22.3 per
cent and 277 per cent respectively, highlighting the increasing importance of council tax revenues.

Figure 3.4 shows the trajectory of the average Band D rate in real terms between 2009-10 and 2015-16
for Wales as a whole, as well as for the NUTS2 statistical regions. The rise in council tax reflects a Welsh

19 The Nomenclature of territorial units for statistics (NUTS) is a standard geographical classification that subdivides territories of the European Union
(EV) into regions at three different levels (NUTS 1, 2 and 3, respectively, moving from larger to smaller territorial units). At Level 2 (NUTS2), Wales is
divided into two groups: West Wales and the Valleys and East Wales. Here we use this division so as to illustrate the types of variation that can be
seen across Wales with respect to local authority revenues and spending. Information on the specific local authorities falling within each territory
can be found here: https://www.ons.gov.uk/methodology/geography/ukgeographies/eurostat#wales.

20 In 2015-16, council tax equated to £530 per person in West Wales and the Valleys compared to £547 per person in East Wales, a difference which
in part reflects the disparity in the size of the council tax base between the two regions. After accounting for council tax discounts and exemp-
tions, in 2015-16 there was one fully taxable Band D equivalent dwelling every 2.7 people in West Wales and the Valleys compared to every 2.4
people in East Wales. Put another way, if West Wales and the Valleys enjoyed the same population adjusted density of Band D equivalent dwelling
as East Wales, its tax base would be 12% larger (see data source: https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Local-Government/Finance/Council-Tax/

DweIIings/counciltaxdwelIings-byct1rowdescription).Tudalen y pecyn 74
21



The impact of austerity so far on Welsh devolved spending

Government policy decision not to institute a freeze (as in Scotland) or limit increases through a tight cap
(as in England). Government grants to councils in Wales fell by significantly less than in England, reflecting
a different approach to service protection. The average Band D council tax rate rose by 11.6 per cent in real
terms across Wales between 2009-10 and 2015-16, albeit with considerable local variation.?'

Figure 3.4: Council tax Band D, 2009-10 to 2016-17 (2017-18 prices)
1,500

1,450
1,400
1,350
1,300

1,250 /

1,200

1,150

Rate of Tax at Band D (£s)

1,100
1,050
1,000
2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17
—\\a|eS East Wales West Wales and the Valleys

Note: Average Band D at the NUTS 2 statistical region level is calculated as a weighted average based on local authority population
estimates. Source: Council tax levels by billing authority and band, available at https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Local-
Government/Finance/Council-Tax/Levels/counciltaxlevels-by-billingauthority-band.

Although the Welsh Local Government Revenue Settlement compensates individual local authorities for

any relative deficits in their numbers of taxable dwellings, it does so only in relation to the set value of the
RSG.2 As a result, if both low and high tax base authorities wished to return to pre-austerity levels of service
spending, the former would need to raise their rates above those of less grant dependent authorities given a
comparatively lower return to the same marginal increase in their rates.

Despite political preferences among certain authorities in favour of maintaining lower rates, between 2009-
10 and 2015-16 an association emerges showing that, on average, authorities with the lowest tax bases per
head of population saw the largest cash increases in their Band D rate.?®*In 2015-16, a strong association is
seen between the total value of a council’s chosen Band D rate and the size of their tax base; a pattern that
may be further extenuated up to 2021-22 and which could raise concerns over equity among council tax
payers across Wales.?

21 For example, Caerphilly’s Band D rate rose by little over 5% between 2009-10 and 2015-16, whereas the Isle of Anglesey chose to raise its Band D rate
by 16.8%. Moreover, there appears to be little association between an authorities Band D rate in 2009-10 and the subsequent change in rate (R = 0.09).

22 This occurs through a distribution mechanism known as Standard Spending Assessments (SSA). SSA funding equals the sum of business rates,
council tax and the RSG, and is a fixed total agreed by the Welsh Government. In this framework, council tax represents a notional amount
of income based on a standard Band D rate being applied, albeit hypothetically, by all authorities referred to as the Council Tax for Standard
Spending (CTSS). This means that as an individual authority’s tax base increases relative to others, RSG as a share of its total SSA decreases. In a
world where SSA is kept fixed at pre-austerity levels, but RSG falls, either business rates or CTSS must rise in order to enable authorities to spend
at their assessed level. In this instance, more grant dependent authorities will be compensated for their lower tax base such that if all authorities
wished to spend at the SSA, we would not see any difference in the Band D rate across authorities. However, if SSA fell more or less in line with
its RSG component, low tax base authorities wishing to protect pre-austerity levels of service spending would need to raise their rates above
those of the less grant dependent authorities given a comparatively lower return to the same marginal increase in rates. From 2009-10 to 2015-16,
total SSA for all local authorities declined by 4.3 per cent (£241m).

23 Calculated as the relationship between each local authorities’ population per Band D dwelling (a population adjusted measure of council tax base)
in 2015-16 and the cash change in their Band D council tax rate, 2009-10 to 2015-16 (R = 0.35). Source: council tax dwellings, by CT1 row description
(available at: https:/statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Local-Government/Finance/Council-Tax/Dwellings/counciltaxdwellings-byctlrowdescription).

24 Calculated as the relationship between each local authorities’ population per Band D dwelling (a population adjusted measure of council tax
base) in 2015-16 and their Band D council tax rate in 2015-16 (R = 0.62). Source: council tax dwellings, by CT1row description (available at: https://

statswales‘gov.waIes/CataIogue/LocaI-GovernmenUFinarTF%atéﬁx&@vp@gWu?5axdweIIings-byct1rowdescription).

22



Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

These changes to local government revenues have had a varied impact on subsequent net public service
spending across Wales. Figure 3.5 summarises the changes to councils’ total net current service expenditure,
categorised into specific service areas, over the period 2009-10 to 2015-16 at the all-Wales level. While
personal social services and schools remained broadly protected in percentage terms, net spending on the
remaining unprotected services declined by 24 per cent, albeit with significant variation across services.

For instance, net public spending on economic development activities such as tourism, business support,
agriculture and fisheries services declined by 66 per cent collectively.?®

Figure 3.5: Cuts to net current service spending by service, 2009-10 to 2015-16 (2017-18 prices)

10% 20,000
> ©
el ‘ o
) 0% ¢ ¢ 0 56
=] ==
T s -10% 20,000 § G
[] (X
23 * . . b
o5 -20% . -40,000 & &
- o c o
= 2o
£o -30% * 60,000 39
(SN =] = 8
TR _40% g2
o N -40% 80,000 £ £
(V] ‘ -
€S o
B ‘ D >
® > -50% -100,000 2 &8
q’ ~~
c g )
: 5 8
5 -60% * -120,000 & &
R «
-70% -140,000
&Q/& < K & < ,z;\be R & \23,\ ’;}e o o@ Oo\e 509 (f)x\ %_\\00
Q S S & & ¢ N & o ¢
RO S & <@ & 9 o 2 I
8 SENNC & & &
Q & N N g < > L &L
© ¢ & & &L o N Lo S
N K e S S
& & & O < le) By £
Qo“o & @ NG S Vb\) &
< <& ecig\o V’b ?5)‘&
S &
© &
N &
< N
N
o

% change in All-Wales service spend (LHA) @ £ changein All-Wales service spend (RHA)

Source: Local government revenue outturn data, available at: https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Local-Government/Finance/
Revenue/Outturn/revenueoutturnexpenditure-by-authority.

Note: Due to prior inconsistencies in the budgetary classification of Flying Start (a high value Welsh Government programme to

support families with children aged 0-3 years) across local authorities, it is not possible to produce a consistent series from 2009-

10 onwards showing how spending on schools, non-school education and children’s social services have changed. For this reason

we group children’s social services and non-school education together into a single budget category. In light of specific recorded
spending movements out of non-school education and into children’s social services where Flying Start has now been accorded its own
accounting cell reference, we believe this to be a reasonable adjustment. For more information please contact the authors directly.

In total, spending on both protected and unprotected services declined by £514m in real terms from 2009-
10 to 2015-16, representing an 8.2 per cent reduction in net spend. Given the disproportionate impact of this
total decline in spending on selected services, how projected cuts fall within local government up to 2021-22
and how they compound already diminished service budgets is a topic that we return to in Section 5.

25 Although several local authorities adopted income generation and charging policies in 2015-16 (see source: https://www.wao.gov.uk/system/files/
publications/445A2016-Financial-resilience-eng.pdf), only a small amount of the changes described in Figure 3.5 can be reasonably attributed
to the mechanistic effect of greater service income reducing authorities’ net spending positions while gross expenditure increases. For instance,
gross expenditure on economic development activiflém;areﬂeg/a p‘efeyﬁir@@ecline of 63 per cent between 2009-10 and 2015-16.

23



Envelope for the Welsh budget

4. Envelope for the Welsh budget

This section considers the overall spending envelope available to the Welsh Government, consisting of the
Welsh block grant allocation from the UK Government and the new Welsh taxes. It revisits spending patterns
under austerity to date and sets out three revenue scenarios for the next four years. Capital block grant
scenarios are also included.

Future UK fiscal strategy is not yet clear, especially given the uncertainties about Brexit, but a radical
departure from the goal of a balanced budget seems unlikely. We set the implications for the Welsh block

grant scenarios for maintaining the status quo and for a modest easing of austerity.

41 Scenarios for the Welsh budget envelope 2018-19 to 2021-22

Given continuing uncertainties about the UK Government’s medium-term fiscal strategy and future
performance of the economy, this report selects three scenarios for UK fiscal policy and their implications
for devolved Welsh spending. We have chosen the assumptions on the basis of their simplicity. As with any
economic or fiscal forecast or projection, the projections outlined below are subject to a number of sources
of potential error that will generate variations in outturn data.

411 Resource block grant scenarios

We draw on the plans set out in the March 2017 UK Budget and assume a continued UK commitment to protect
central budgets for the NHS, schools, defence and international development. Using the Wales Governance
Centre’s Welsh tax modelling and applying the NBF to any growth in the Welsh block grant from 2018-19
onwards. The Appendix contains a fuller methodology of modelling the block grant.

The scenarios also make various assumptions about Wales’ share of £3.5 billion efficiency savings which the
Chancellor included in his Autumn Statement, scheduled to be delivered in 2019-20. Under these plans, £1
billion of the resulting savings are to be reinvested in ‘priority’ areas, although it is unclear what these are.
Some spending areas, such as health and core schools, were exempted from the efficiency savings plans.
Because these areas are fully devolved to Wales, protection at the UK level would mitigate the impact of the
efficiency savings on the Welsh budget. The forthcoming autumn fiscal event may revisit these efficiency
savings plans and could provide more detail about how they might be implemented.

This section investigates the following scenarios:
R1: A baseline ‘austerity’ scenario for the Welsh block grant based on:

« the plans announced in the March 2017 Budget to 2019-20
- adding in a Wales share of the Treasury’s planned £3.5bn efficiency savings?®

- assuming that the UK departmental spending allocations in 2019-20 will be uprated for inflation in
2020-21and 2021-22

26 The March 2017 Budget includes a row which says ‘Adjustment for planned efficiency savings’ in 2019-20, but almost no information is available
on how the cuts would be allocated. Details suggest that the NHS, ‘core schools’, defence, and international aid will be protected. It is also
suggested that efficiencies made at the local government be reinvested into social care (mostly a local responsibility). Core schools funding,
or the Dedicated Schools Grant, was £40.7bn in 2016-17, approximately 2/3 of the Education Budget (http://www.parliament.uk/briefing-papers/
SNO06702.pdf). We therefore model efficiency cuts to affect the non-protected third of the Education budget, while core schools are protected in

real terms. See: https://www.gov‘uk/government/news/eﬁl'c[gda*@'pyvgp—pmqu |\¢—public—services
24



Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

R2: An ‘easing of austerity’ scenario for resource spending based on R1 and:
« cancelling the requirement for the £3.5 billion efficiency savings

- building the Conservative manifesto spending pledges into the figures?’

R3: A ‘benchmark’ scenario which protects the March 2017 Budget allocations through the projection
period 2018-19 to 2021-22 by either:

- uprating the March Budget 2017-18 spend from our simulated baseline for inflation (protecting 2017-
18 allocations in real terms), or

- using the March Budget 2017 simulated baseline spend for that particular year in cash terms,
whichever is higher

All three scenarios would result in continued real terms reductions in the Welsh block for resource
expenditure.

The trajectory of the Welsh block grant under the three scenarios R1-R3 (adjusted for the NBF and the BGA)
is shown in Figure 4.1. The current (unchanged) policy scenario R1 results in the lowest block grant to Wales.
Scenario R2, which cancels the £3.5bn cuts and increases NHS spending results in the middle block grant
profile, which dips in 2019-20 but increases thereafter. Scenario R3, which protects UK RDEL allocations in
real terms from 2017-18 onwards results in less pronounced changes to the Welsh block grant in 2019-20
compared to R1and R2. Because allocations are assumed to be kept flat in real terms in 2021-21 and 2021-
22 except for scenario R2, which increases funding to the NHS England in real terms, the Welsh block grant
under scenario R2 becomes higher than under R3 in 2021-22.

Figure 4.1: Three scenarios for the Welsh block grant for resource expenditure (excluding depreciation) 2017-
18 to 2021-22, £million, 2017-18 prices

13,500
13,400
13,300
13,200

13,100

13,000

12,900

12,800

Welsh resource block grant, £m, 2017-18 prices

12,700
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

— R R2 R3

Source: See Appendix for sources.

27 Atthe 2017 General Election, the Conservative party pledged to increase NHS spending “by a minimum of £8 billion in real terms over the next
five years” (Conservative Party, 2017, p. 66) and second, to “increase the overall schools budget by £4 billion by 2022” (p. 51). No details were
given about the profile of this spending, but this report assumes that spending (real terms, in the case of the NHS, and nominal, in the case of
schools) will increase linearly from 2018-19 until the additional amount pledged is reached. Since we also do not know how the funding will be
allocated between resource and capital budgets in health and education, we assume that both resource and capital will grow proportionately,
such that the sum of resource and capital health spending in 2022-23 is £8bn higher in real terms than in 2017-18. We also assume that the

increase will occur annually at a rate of 1.3 per cent Trcmd(aﬁmryaﬂe@?We?gaendix for more detail.
25



Envelope for the Welsh budget

Table 4.1 shows the Welsh block grant under the different scenarios listed above over 2017-18 to 2021-22. For
example, in our baseline scenario (R1) the block grant in 2021-22 would be 3 per cent lower in 2021-22 than
in 2017-18 in real terms, owing to the efficiency savings enforced on unprotected public services that are due
to be implemented in 2019-20. If these efficiency savings are scrapped and the extra allocations to the NHS
set out in the Conservative 2017 Manifesto are made (R2), the cuts would be much smaller, at just 0.5 per
cent, resulting in an additional £300 million for the Welsh Government compared to scenario R1in 2021-22.

In turn, if real-terms spending by Whitehall departments is protected from 2017-18 (scenario R3), the Welsh
block grant would still fall by 0.8 per cent in real terms. This is because, despite the NBF adjustments
going forward from 2018-19, the higher spending per person in Wales relative to England means that the
same cash-terms spending per head increase will still be a smaller cash-terms percentage increase, and
consequently, a modest real-terms cut.?®

Table 4.1: Three scenarios for the Welsh block grant for resource expenditure (excluding depreciation) 2017-
18 to 2021-22, £millions, 2017-18 prices

Scenario | 2017-18 | 2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2021-22 % change 2017-18 to 2021-22
R1 13,400 13,196 12,998 13,001 12,998 -3.0%
R2 13,400 13,246 13,182 13,261 13,334 -0.5%
R3 13,400 13,332 13,287 13,291 13,288 -0.8%

Source: See Appendix for sources

Table 4.2 shows the year-on-year change in the Welsh block grant. In the baseline scenario R1, Wales would
see a cumulative cut of around £400 million between 2018-19 and 2021-22: cuts of around £200m in both
2018-19 and 2019-20 (or a 1.5% cut year-on-year over those two years). In contrast, in scenario R2, the scale of
the cuts is reduced in 2018-19 and 2019-20 (to 1.2% and 0.5% respectively), and there is a slight increase in the
block grant of approximately £76 million in both 2020-21and 2021-22 as a result of the increased allocations
to the NHS set out in the Conservative 2017 manifesto. In scenario R3 where 2017-18 allocations are protected,
there is a slight cut to the Welsh block grant of about 0.8 per cent between 2018-19 and 2019-20.

Table 4.2: Annual real terms changes to the Welsh block grant for resource expenditure, 2017-18 to 2021-22,
£million, 2017-18 prices

e — i’:‘e::’;‘i,‘i’ous yeany | 2071819 | 2019-20 | 202021 | 202122 Cumulative cut
R1(£) 204 -199 3 3 -402
R1 (%) 1.5% 1.5% 0.0% 0.0% -3.0%
R2 (£) 154 64 79 73 -66
R2 (%) 1.2% -0.5% 0.6% 0.5% -0.5%
R3 (£) 68 45 3 2 112
R3 (%) -0.5% -0.3% 0.0% 0.0% -0.8%

Source: See Appendix for sources.

28 Under current arrangements, the Barnett formula allocates to Wales the same cash—terms increase in spending per head as is assumed to be
allocated to England from Whitehall departmental budgets, and this represents a smaller cash—terms percentage change to the block grant than
for comparable spending in England because spending per head is higher in Wales. This smaller cash—terms percentage increase translates into
a real-terms cut. To see this, consider the following example. Suppose spending per head is £100 in England and £115 in Wales. A £10 per head
increase in spending would be a 10% increase in England, but an 8.7% increase in Wales (see Phillips and Simpson (2016). Going forward with the
NBF from 2018-19, any positive cash changes will be increased by a factor of 1.05. But even with this boost, the proportionate spending increase

will still be lower than in England: the £10.5 NBF-adjuste&]Vmelalaerepe@yﬁ a'Pga increase relative to Wales’ £115 spending level.

26




Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

4.2 Capital block grant scenarios

In addition to the resource DEL scenarios outlined above, we also consider two main scenarios for capital
DEL based on the March Budget 2017.
« C1: As set out in March Budget 2017, and assuming that capital allocations in 2020-21 will be
maintained in real terms in 2021-22.

« C2: As C1, but with 10 per cent of capital spending planned in 2021-22 brought forward to 2019-20
and 2020-21 (spread equally across the two years).

Table 4.3 presents the Welsh capital block grant under each of the above scenarios. In C1, under the March
2017 budget plans, capital is set to increase by 13 per cent over 2017-18 to 2021-22, or by approximately
£200 million. If, in contrast, bringing forward some of the extra capital spending to 2017-18 and 2018-19
(scenario C2) would increase the capital block grant in these years at the cost of slightly lower capital
spending in 2020-21 and 2021-22. Figure 4.2 shows the profile of the capital block grant under C1and C2.

Table 4.3: Two scenarios for the Welsh block grant for capital expenditure, 2017-18 to 2021-22, £millions,
2017-18 prices

. % change 2017- | % change 2017-18
Scenario | 201718 | 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22
18 to 2020-21 to 2021-22
C1 1,600 1,674 1,743 1,806 1,806 12.9% 12.9%
Cc2 1,600 1,674 1,832 1,894 1,630 18.4% 1.9%

Source: See Appendix.

Figure 4.2: Welsh block grant for capital expenditure (excluding depreciation), 2017-18 to 2021-22, £ million,
2017-18 prices

2,000

1,900

1,800
1700 /
1,600

1,500

1,400

1,300

1,200

1,100

Welsh capital block grant, £m, 2017-18 prices

1,000

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

C1 Cc2

Source: See Appendix.

Tudalen y pecyn 80
27



Envelope for the Welsh budget

4.2 Choices and trade-offs for the Welsh Budget

As well as devolved spending powers, Wales has some of its own tax-varying powers and will be gaining
additional tax-varying powers in the near future. Block grant allocations to the Welsh Government include
adjustments for Wales’ own sources of revenue, which together form its overall resource budget. The Welsh
Government’s devolved revenues comprise non-domestic rates (‘business rates’), which have been fully
devolved since 2015-16; Landfill Tax and Stamp Duty Land Tax, which will be devolved from April 2018; and a
10 pence share of each tax band levied on earned income except from savings and dividends, which will be
devolved from April 2019 at the earliest.

We discussed the impacts that the devolved revenues would have on the Welsh Government budget in
Section 2.2. This section brings together these sources of devolved revenue and the block grant scenarios,
discussed in Section 4., and considers the possible trade-offs that the Welsh Government could make in
financing public services provision.

Depending on future fiscal strategy, continued trade-offs in Wales over the next four years as a response to

growing cost and demand pressures on NHS and care services, linked to an ageing society, could challenge

the sustainability of other services as they are currently organised.

4.21 Choices and trade-offs 2018-19 to 2021-22

The analysis below looks at future possible choices and trade-offs that could arise going forward on the
basis of the three scenarios set out in Section 4.1. We take the 2017-18 First Supplementary Budget as our
starting point, and use the block grants and devolved tax revenues discussed in previous sections to inform
our modelling for the funding available to the Welsh Government from 2018-19 onwards.?°

We then consider different spending decisions that the Welsh Government might take, and look at how
these affect the resources available to different public services. In setting out these options, we assume
that the Welsh Government will continue to want to protect spending on the NHS, schools and social
services, particularly adult social care. The Health Foundation has concluded that over the period to 2030-
31, NHS funding in Wales will need to increase in real terms annually by 2.9 per cent to meet demand and
cost pressures, including the rising prevalence of chronic conditions and advances in medical science and
technology (Watt and Roberts, 2016). This assumes at least 1 per cent efficiency savings each year and that
the pay cap stays in place until at least 2019-2020. This is close to the long-term funding trend for the NHS
across the UK prior to austerity. As indicated earlier, the Health Foundation has warned that the Conservative
manifesto spending pledges do not meet the NHS ‘funding gap’ in England. The organisation also advised
that spending on adult social care in Wales will also need to rise by 4 per cent a year in real terms.

Informed by the above research, we investigate the following four scenarios:

W1: Protecting health spending to take account of demand and the core NHS budget by a) ensuring
that any funding the that Welsh Government receives from Barnett consequentials as a result of
increases in English NHS spending is directed to the Welsh NHS and, b) that the core NHS budget
does not fall either in real terms or as a share of the overall Welsh budget. Any overall budget cuts
required are shared proportionately across other unprotected service areas.

W2: As W1, plus the protection of social services and schools spending in real terms.

29 We make no assumptions about the use of existing Reserves — for example the Welsh Reserve will include £98.5 million as part of the
arrangements for the devolution on business rates — although there is an annual draw-down limit of £125 million. It should also be noted that first
supplementary budgets are often smaller than final allocations because money is held back to be allocated in second supplementary budgets.

However, we use this budget because it is the latest datﬁraumjaauaen y pecyn 81
28



Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

Wa3: Increase NHS spending by 3 per cent per year real terms (as suggested by the Health Foundation
to ensure long-term sustainability, but include no other protections.

W4: As W3, plus increasing adult social services spending by 4 per cent in real terms (also
recommended by the Health Foundation), and protecting the remaining social services and schools
spending in real terms.

Like Phillips and Simpson (2016), we do not suggest that the Welsh Government should necessarily follow
any of the above scenarios, which are designed to illustrate how particular choices might cause trade-offs
with other policies and spending areas. As well as highlighting the possible trade-offs facing the Welsh
Government, our model also illustrates possible trade-offs at local government level, which are discussed in
Section 5.

The Welsh Government’s priorities may be inferred from its allocations on different public service areas
from the overall resource budget (fiscal resource DEL and business rates),’® shown in Table 4.4. The largest
component is the core NHS fiscal resource budget (£6.6bn), which in 2017-18 accounted for 47 per cent of
the overall fiscal resource budget.® Given that core NHS takes up such a large proportion of the resource
budget, continuing to protect the NHS would put more pressure on other unprotected services.

The second largest component, support for local government, forms a further 30 per cent of the overall
budget (including Annually Managed Expenditure (AME) support for local government in the form of business
rates revenues), of which around two thirds is allocated to schools and social services. These three types of
public services are typically ‘protected’ from cuts — for example, by keeping spend on these services fixed in
real terms. Together, core NHS, the social services component of the Health, well-being and sport MEG, and
the schools and social services proportion of central government support for local government (including
business rates) add up to £9.5 billion or two thirds of the overall Welsh Government fiscal resource budget.
This leaves just one third of the budget available for other services such as the economy and infrastructure,
environment and rural affairs, and other services.

30 Although business rates have been formally classified as AME since April 2015, in practice, they are spent on resource-type items at the local
government level (see also Phillips and Simpson (2016), p.53).

31 Because Table 4.4 excludes non-fiscal resource DEL, these numbers vary slightly from those presented in Figure 3.1, which was based on RDEL

MEG allocations including non-fiscal resource DEL. Tudalen y pecyn 82
29



Envelope for the Welsh budget

Table 4.4: Welsh Government Fiscal Resource DEL, 2017-18, £millions

Percentage of Total
Welsh Government Main Expenditure Group 2017-18 allocation to Welsh
Government
Health, Well-being and Sport 6,875 49%
Of which: Core NHS' 6,609 47%
Of which: Public Health? 175 1%
Of which: Social services 90 1%
DEL funding support for local government 3,298 23%
Other local government spend 32 0%
Communities and Children 37 3%
Economy and Infrastructure 626 4%
Education 1,371 10%
Environment and Rural Affairs 269 2%
Central Services and Administration 278 2%
Total Resource DEL allocated to departments 13,088 93%
AME support for Local Government (NDR) 1,059 7%
Total DEL and NDR allocated to departments 14147 100%

Note: The breakdown of the “Health, Wellbeing and Sport” into core NHS, public health and social services assumes that fiscal
resource DEL (which excludes depreciation) is allocated across these areas in the same proportion as total resource DEL (which
includes depreciation). 1- Core NHS comprises NHS delivery and Health central cervices; 2 - Public health comprises Total public
health and prevention and Total Sports and Physical Activity. Source: Welsh Government First Supplementary Budget 2017-18. Figure
adjusted to exclude housing benefit expenditure in council spending.

The Welsh Government’s overall fiscal resource budget establishes the limit for how much can be spent

on public services provision. Each of the above spending scenarios (W1-W4) illustrate the different choices
faced by the Government: protecting or increasing funding for the NHS, or extending protections to other
public services. Spending more in one area naturally requires additional cuts to other, unprotected areas.
The following figures (Figure 4.3 through to Figure 4.5) identify how each different revenue scenario (R1-R3)
changes the balance between the cuts to protected and unprotected services.

As we set out in Section 4.1, in our baseline resource revenue scenario R1, the Welsh block grant is forecast
to be cut by 3.0 per cent in real terms between 2017-18 and 2021-22. Over the same period, revenues
from non-domestic rates are forecast to increase by 2.0 per cent in real terms.32 This means that the Welsh
Government’s overall resource budget (RDEL+NDR) will face real cuts of 2.6 per cent.

Figure 4.3 disaggregates public services spending by core NHS, schools, and social services, and shows

the effects of protecting certain service areas on other key services. Starting with baseline scenario R1,
protecting the NHS (scenario W1)* would mean cuts to central government support to local government of
5.2 per cent. Keeping the NHS protection in place and extending real-terms protections to schools and social
services (W2) would mean that cuts to central government support to local government would be lower: 2.8
per cent rather than 5.2 per cent.

In scenario W3, increasing NHS spending by 3 per cent with no other protections increases the cuts to
local government to 15.9 per cent. With the 3 per cent NHS arrangement in place, and increasing Welsh
government support to local government for adult social services by providing increases of 4 per cent, plus
protecting the rest of social services and schools spending (W4), would result in local government cuts of

32 Assuming that in 2020-21 and 2021-22, business rates continue to grow at their average historic real growth rate between 2016-17 and 2019-20.
33 By matching funding increases in England and ensuring that the core NHS Wales budget does not fall in real terms or as a share of the overall

Welsh budget. Tudalen y pecyn 83
30



Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

7.6 per cent. However, more protections and increases in spending for selected public services compounds
pressure on unprotected services such as economic development and regeneration, children’s services, and
the arts. In the maximum protection scenario R1-W4, unprotected services face average cuts of 271 per cent
over the forecast period.

Figure 4.3: Cuts to Welsh Government spending by service area, 2017-18 to 2021-22, in baseline revenue

scenario (R1), by Welsh Government spending scenario W1-W4
W4: 3% NHS increases,

4% adult SASS
(CG supportto LG)
W?2: Protect NHS, increases, protect rest
schools, and social of social care, protect
W1: Protect NHS services (SASS) W3:3% NHS increases schools
15%
10%
5%
0, — —
0% - - - -
-5%
-10%
-15%
-20%
-25%
-30%
. Core NHS Local government Other . Total

Source: See Appendix. Authors’ calculations.

A similar trade-off pattern holds for revenue scenarios R2 and R3. Both of these scenarios offer higher
spending than R1, which decreases the total cut to the Welsh Government resource budget to 0.3 per
cent (R2) or 0.5 per cent (R3). The smaller cut to the Welsh Government resource budget in scenarios R2
and R3 compared to R1 also alleviates some of the pressures in the trade-offs between funding protected
and unprotected services. For example, in scenario R2, the slightly higher level of the Welsh block grant
reduces the extent of cuts to unprotected services to 1.7 per cent and 3.6 per cent in scenarios W1 and W2
respectively, and to 11.6 per cent and 20.7 per cent in scenarios W3 and W4,

Figure 4.4: Cuts to Welsh Government spending by service area, 2017-18 to 2021-22, in revenue scenario
R2, by Welsh Government spending scenario W1-W4

W4: 3% NHS increases,
4% adult SASS
(CG supportto LG)
W?2: Protect NHS, increases, protect rest
schools, and social of social care, protect
W 1: Protect NHS services (SASS) W3: 3% NHS increases schools
15%

10%

5%

0% - = [

-5%
-10%
-15%
-20%
-25%

. Core NHS Local government Other . Total

Source: See Appendix. Authors’ calculations. TUdalen y pecyn 84
31



Envelope for the Welsh budget

Similarly, in scenario R3 (Figure 4.5), the protection of all public services has a similar effect, compared to the
baseline scenario R1. Cuts to unprotected services are similar to those in R2: 1.4 per cent and 2.4 per cent in
scenarios W1 and W2, and to 12.2 per cent and 21.2 per cent in scenarios W3 and W4 respectively.

Figure 4.5: Cuts to Welsh Government spending by service area, 2017-18 to 2021-22, in revenue scenario
R3, by Welsh Government spending scenario W1-W4

W4: 3% NHS increases,

4% adult SASS
(CG supportto LG)
W?2: Protect NHS, increases, protect rest
schools, and social of social care, protect
W1: Protect NHS services (SASS) W3:3% NHS increases schools
15%
10%
5%
0% —=— —_— —_— — —
-5%
-10%
-15%
-20%
-25%
. Core NHS Local government Other . Total

Source: See Appendix. Authors’ calculations.

To contextualise what these trade-offs could mean for Welsh public services, we provide the following
illustration (Figure 4.6). If we apply the growth rate for the total resource revenue under revenue scenario R1
(the modelled Welsh block grant (NBF and BGA adjusted) and business rates) to the last available figure for
the business-rate adjusted RDEL, and apply the core NHS growth rates under scenarios W1-R1 and W3-R1 to
the last available core NHS figure and project forwards to 2021-22, we can project what would happen to
core NHS as a proportion of the Welsh Government’s budget between 2018-19 and 2021-22.

Tudalen y pecyn 85
32



Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

Figure 4.6: Historic and projected Welsh RDEL, £ million, 2017-18 prices, and core NHS as a proportion of the

overall resource budget

16,500
16,000
15,500
15,000
14,500
14,000
13,500

13,000

Welsh RDEL and NDR, £m, 2017-18 prices

12,500

12,000

N

&

P

60%

40%

20%

Core NHS as per cent of Welsh RDEL+NDR

0%

T TN T S O TP NS N ¥

N N >
& oy A S A 5 o AN
N N N N N N N N Q Q
S S S S OSSR S S

RDEL and NDR (adjusted, £m) Projected RDEL (R1, £m)

Core NHSas % of WelshRDEL+NDR ~ eeceesce Core NHS (W1) as % of Welsh RDEL + NDR (R1)

Core NHS (W3) as % of Welsh RDEL + NDR (R1)

Source: See Appendix.

Under revenue scenario R1, the overall resource budget falls by 2.6 per cent over 2017-18 to 2021-22. Under

Welsh Government core NHS protection scenario W1-R1, core NHS is projected to fall by 5.2 per cent in real

terms over the same period. However, because the fall in the RDEL flattens out in 2020-21and 2021-22

(there is actually a slight real-terms increase driven by the projected increase in business rates), protecting

the core NHS in real terms would slightly increase the core NHS share of the Welsh resource budget (from

48.2% to 49.6%) per cent. The core NHS budgeted amount would increase by £18m in real terms).

Under scenario W3-R1, where core NHS is grown by 3 per cent in real terms each year (the Health

Foundation sustainable NHS projection), core NHS would rise from 48 per cent of the resource budget in
2017-18 to 56 per cent by 2021-22, or by £853m over the same period.

What about unprotected services at the Welsh Government level? For example, funding to post-16 education

has seen considerable cuts over recent years. Colleges receive around two thirds of their income from Welsh

Government grants (mostly through the revenue support grant). Between 2011-12 and 2016-17, grant funding
fell from £303 million to £281 million, roughly equivalent to a 13% real-terms cut (Welsh Audit Office (WAQ),
2017). This cut fell disproportionately on part-time provision since the Welsh Government attempted to

protect full-time provision for young people aged 16-19 (see WAO (2017) for more information). If we assume

that, overall, the grant to FE colleges would be categorised as ‘unprotected’, under our scenarios W1-W4
the sector would suffer further cuts between 2017-18 and 2021-22, ranging from 5.2 per cent (W1) to 271 per
cent (W4). If we assume that the sector grant funding in 2017-18 were the same in real terms as in 2016-17,

and apply cuts to 2017-18 going forward to 2021-22, this could mean a real-terms grant funding fall to £266
million by 2021-22 (W1, CAGR of -1.3%) or to £205 million (W4, CAGR of -7.6%).

Tudalen y pecyn 86
33



Envelope for the Welsh budget

The above illustrations show that even if the UK government relaxes austerity to an extent, there are still
substantial challenges to be met in finding funding to ensure that key Welsh public services keep pace with
demand and other pressures. Fundamentally, finding such sums for health and social services would mean
very tough choices for other service areas, which could see cuts ranging from 21to 27 per cent.

Tudalen y pecyn 87
34



Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

5. Scenarios for local government

This section looks at local government income and spending in the light of the scenarios set out in previous
parts. Our focus is the twenty-two unitary authorities. The Welsh Government has pursued a distinctive
approach to local government finance which has seen smaller cuts in local authority spending compared
with England and higher rises in Council Tax. The analysis below reports some of the results from our work
which will feed into the IFS UK-wide programme on local government finance. We will be publishing a fuller
account of this work later this autumn.

Local government receives its income from three main sources: grants from central government, business
rates, and council tax rates. In the context of historic cuts to local government, we focus on our baseline

scenario with no income tax changes (R1) to illustrate how the Welsh Government’s different spending

decisions (W1-W4) affect Welsh Government support for local government. We also consider what
implications this might have for different local government funded public services going forward to 2021-22.

51 Scenarios for Welsh local government 2018-19 to 2021-22

Although we could run different scenarios for Welsh local governments’ budgets by selecting different
revenue scenarios and changing Welsh Government’s spending allocations, these would all either increase
or decrease the support available to local government through the revenue support and specific grants. We
focus on our baseline scenario with no income tax changes (R1) to illustrate how the Welsh Government’s
different spending decisions (W1-W4) affect Welsh Government support for local government. We also make
the assumption that local councils do not draw any funds from their reserves in future years to fund their
spending. Note that where we protect central government support to local government, we protect the
revenue support grant and the redistributed share of business rate revenues only (see Appendix p. 51). This
section considers 4 scenarios for Welsh Government support to local government (L1-L4):

L1: Our baseline council revenue scenario, in which the Welsh Government protects core NHS spending
(scenario W1),>* where general and specific grants to councils change at the same rate as other Welsh
Government spending, and where council tax revenues increase in line with the OBR’s forecast.

L2: As L1, but where the Welsh Government also protects that part of its general funding for councils
that relates to councils’ education and social services responsibilities (scenario W2).

L3: As L1, but where the Welsh government increases core NHS spending by 3 per cent annually
(scenario W3).

L4: As L3, but where the Welsh Government also increases its support to local government adult social
services spending by 4 per cent annually, protects that part of its general funding for councils that
relates to councils’ education responsibilities, and protects the rest of social services (scenario W4).

The following tables (Table 5.1 through to Table 5.4) show what happens to Welsh council revenues under
scenarios L1-L4 under resource scenario R1. The extent of the cuts to local government funding depend on
the total cut to the Welsh Government overall resource budget and on the protections in place for public
services. For example, cuts to unprotected specific grants to local government are highest if the Welsh

34 We assume that Welsh ‘core NHS’ spending is ‘protected’ by a) ensuring that any funding the that Welsh Government receives
from Barnett consequentials as a result of increases in English NHS spending is directed to the Welsh NHS, and b) ensuring that
the core NHS budget does not fall either in real terms or as a share of the overall Welsh budget. This protection results in small
real-terms increases in the Welsh ‘core NHS’ budget. Any overall budget cuts required are shared proportionately across other

unprotected service areas. Tuda|en y pecyn 88
35



Scenarios for local government

Government increases funding for health and adult social services and protects the rest of social services
and education (L4).

In our local government baseline revenue scenario L1, we assume that the Welsh Government protects core
NHS spending but offers no protection to other services, including support to local government (W1). Under
these assumptions, specific and revenue support grants (including non-domestic rates) would fall by 5.2 per
cent over the period 2017-18 to 2021-22 (Table 5.1). Overall local government revenues would be down by
3.2 per cent, assuming councils only draw on their reserves in 2017-18 and not over the projected period (or
1.7% if reserves are excluded completely).

Table 54: Scenario L1, £ million, 2017-18 prices

Welsh council revenues, forecast 201718 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 % change
Specific grants 864 837 817 818 819 -5.2%
Appropriations from(+) / to(-) reserves 97 0 0 0 0 NA
Discretionary non-domestic rate relief -4 -3 -4 -4 -4 2.0%
Central government funding: RSG + NDR 414 3,985 3,890 3,896 3,901 -5.2%
Council tax (net of reduction scheme) 1182 1,221 1,259 1,296 1,334 12.8%
TOTAL 6,253 6,040 5,963 6,007 6,050 -3.2%
Total (excluding reserves) 6,156 6,040 5,963 6,007 6,050 -1.7%

Source: See Appendix.

In contrast, Table 5.2 shows that if the Welsh Government were to partially protect the general funding to
local government through the RSG and NDR,*® overall central funding cuts between 2017-18 and 2021-22
would be smaller than under L1(2.8%), but the cuts to unprotected specific grants would be larger (8.4%).
Overall local government revenues would be cut by less than under L1, (0.6% excluding reserves, or 2.1%

including reserves in 2017-18).

Table 5.2: Scenario L2, £ million, 2017-18 prices

Welsh council revenues, forecast 201718 2018-19 2019-20 | 2020-21 2021-22 % change
Specific grants 864 821 789 790 791 -8.4%
Appropriations from(+) / to(-) reserves 97 0 0 0 0 NA
Discretionary non-domestic rate relief -4 -3 -4 -4 -4 2.0%
Central government funding: RSG + NDR 414 4,042 3,989 3,995 4,000 -2.8%
Council tax (net of reduction scheme) 1182 1,221 1,259 1,296 1,334 12.8%
TOTAL 6,253 6,081 6,034 6,078 6,121 -21%
Total (excluding reserves) 6,156 6,081 6,034 6,078 6,121 -0.6%

Source: See Appendix.

The following two local government scenarios L3 and L4 consider what happens to local government
revenues if the Welsh Government were to increase core NHS spending to 3 per cent a year in real terms.
Under scenario L3 the Welsh Government offers no other protections (W3). Under scenario L4, the Welsh
Government additionally considers the impact of increasing adult social service spending by 4 per cent a
year in real terms, and protecting the rest of social services and schools spend in real terms (W4).

35 By applying real-terms protections to social services (the proportion of central government support to local government DEL and
AME spent on social services, as well as to the social services component of the Health Welfare and Sport MEG) and to schools

((the proportion of central government support to Tpald;ayernnynp!@yﬁj 8@5 spent on schools).
36



Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

In scenario L3, overall central funding support and specific grants would be both cut by 15.9 per cent
between 2017-18 and 2021-22, around three times the amount compared to L1 (Table 5.3). Overall local
government revenues would also be cut by substantially more than under L1 over the same period (10.4%
excluding reserves, or 11.8% including reserves in 2017-18).

Table 5.3: Scenario L3, £ million, 2017-18 prices

Welsh council revenues, forecast 201718 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 % change
Specific grants 864 814 771 749 726 -15.9%
Appropriations from(+) / to(-) reserves 97 0 0 0 0 NA
Discretionary non-domestic rate relief -4 -3 -4 -4 -4 2.0%
Central government funding: RSG + NDR 414 3,877 3,671 3,568 3,458 -15.9%
Council tax (net of reduction scheme) 1182 1,221 1,259 1,296 1,334 12.8%
TOTAL 6,253 5,909 5,697 5,609 5,514 -11.8%
Total (excluding reserves) 6,156 5,909 5,697 5,609 5,514 -10.4%

Source: See Appendix.

Finally, in our most optimistic scenario for protected public services, L4 (Table 5.4), if the Welsh Government
were to increase protections further, cuts to central government funding would be between those in

scenarios L1 and L3 (7.6%). However, cuts to unprotected specific grants would be around five times larger
than under L1(271%). Overall local government revenues would be cut by less than under L3, but by more
than under L1(6.4% excluding reserves, or 7.9% including reserves in 2017-18).

Table 5.4: Scenario L4, £ million, 2017-18 prices

Welsh council revenues, forecast 201718 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 % change
Specific grants 864 779 706 668 629 -271%
Appropriations from(+) / to(-) reserves 97 0 0 0 0 NA
Discretionary non-domestic rate relief -4 -3 -4 -4 -4 2.0%
Central government funding: RSG + NDR 4114 4,001 3,900 3,854 3,801 -7.6%
Council tax (net of reduction scheme) 1182 1,221 1,259 1,296 1,334 12.8%
TOTAL 6,253 5,998 5,862 5,815 5,760 -7.9%
Total (excluding reserves) 6,156 5,998 5,862 5,815 5,760 -6.4%

Source: See Appendix.

The tables above show that as the Welsh Government extends protections to selected public services

spending, the unprotected part of support to local government is cut by more and more as more protections
are added. We emphasise that the above tables take as a starting point UK revenue scenario R1, under
which the block grant to Wales bears some of the Barnett consequentials of a £3.5bn cut across unprotected
resource spending areas at the UK level in 2019-20. With different assumptions, the corresponding changes
to Welsh local government support from the Welsh Government would change accordingly. So far we

have also assumed that Welsh council tax revenue would continue to grow at a rate forecast by the OBR.

However, local councils have the power to vary council tax. We consider what the implications of raising

council tax in Section 5.1.1.

511 The role of council taxes

Given that the majority of councils’ budgﬁad@éwcyaﬁ@byﬁngers from the Welsh Government through

37



Scenarios for local government

the local government settlement, councils can use council taxes (and to a lesser extent, fees and charges)

to influence a limited part their budgets. We discussed the historic developments regarding council tax in
Section 3.2. In our local government scenarios L1-L4, we did not change the growth in council tax revenues.
In this section, we model increases in council tax rates by an additional 3.3 percentage points per year above
OBR forecasts in 2019-20 to 2021-22.3¢

L1+: As L1 but with council tax increases such that local authorities increase council tax by an extra 3.3
percentage points a year over and above the OBR forecast in 2019-20 to 2021-22, such that by
2021-22 council tax rates are 10 percentage points higher than the OBR March 2017 forecast.

The OBR forecasts that Welsh real council tax revenues will continue to grow at 3.1% a year between 2017-18
and 2021-22 (OBR 2017c). For these forecasts, the OBR assumes that council tax bills will increase by about
4.0 per cent a year from 2017-18 onwards, and that the council tax base (number of residential properties) will
grow at 0.8 per cent a year. Overall, Welsh council tax revenues are forecast to increase by 12.8 per cent in
real terms between 2017-18 and 2021-22.

If we increase council tax bills by 3.3 per cent a year on top of the 4.0 per cent increase forecast by the

OBR over 2019-20 to 2021-22, council tax revenues (net of reduction scheme) would increase by 21.4 per
cent under scenario L1+ (Table 5.5) rather than by 12.8 per cent under local government scenarios L1-L4.

As a result, while the cuts to general (including non-domestic rates) and specific grants would be the same
as under scenario L1 (5.2%), overall cuts to local government revenues would virtually disappear (they

would decrease to 1.1 per cent if reserves in 2017-18 are included, if reserves are excluded, however, overall
revenues would increase slightly, by 0.4 per cent).

Table 5.5: L1+, £million, 2017-18 prices

Welsh council revenues, forecast 201718 2018-19 2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2021-22 % change
Specific grants 864 837 817 818 819 -5.2%
Appropriations from(+) / to(-) reserves 97 0 0 0 0 NA
Discretionary non-domestic rate relief -4 -3 -4 -4 -4 2.0%
Central government funding: RSG + NDR 414 3,985 3,890 3,896 3,901 -5.2%
Council tax (net of reduction scheme) 1182 1,221 1,301 1,383 1,467 24.1%
TOTAL 6,253 6,040 6,005 6,094 6,184 -11%
Total (excluding reserves) 6,156 6,040 6,005 6,094 6,184 0.4%

Source: See Appendix.

However, the ability for councils to offset cuts by increasing council tax would vary significantly across Wales,
because different Welsh councils depend on council tax as a source of income to different extents. The data
show that local authorities that obtain a greater proportion of their income from council tax can offset a larger
proportion of cuts to their grants from increasing council tax revenues. Conversely, authorities that rely less
on council tax as a source of income relative to other sources, would be able to use the council tax lever to
offset cuts to their grants to a lesser extent.

Underpinning these differences, and further constraining the capacity for using council taxes as a policy lever
in the face of cuts, is the variation in the council tax rates across local authorities, and variations in the council
tax base. Welsh council taxes have already been increasing over time (see Section 3.2 for a discussion), and

36 In Phillips and Simpson (2016), the IFS created a scenario where council taxes collected from taxpayers would rise by an
additional 3.3 percentage points per year above OBR forecasts in 2017-18 to 2019-20, such that by 2019-20 they would be 10 p.p.

higher than the OBR forecasts. In this report, we uTmm@nnycpawl@Pf this scenario.
38



Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

further substantial raises may not be feasible. While the evaluation of the fairness of council tax is outside the
scope of this report, it is important to highlight these considerations, and to acknowledge that raising council
tax without making changes to the council tax system is likely to be a regressive policy move.

The different local government budgets will in turn affect resource allocations on public services run by
councils. Council revenues stem from the central government support to local government through grants
and redistributed non-domestic rates, as well as from other sources. As councils protect key local public
services, such as education and adult social services, there is correspondingly less funding available to other,
non-protected local public services, such as libraries, roads and transport, and local environmental services.

5.2 Choices and trade-offs between councils’ service areas 2018-19 to 2021-22

In this section, we consider the trade-offs that local authorities could be facing when allocating resources

to council-provided public service areas. Under the local government revenue scenarios L1-L4 and L1+
discussed in Section 5.1, councils would face cuts of varying magnitudes. If councils wanted to protect certain
areas of spending, this would mean that cuts would have to be made elsewhere.

Councils’ main spending areas are education and social services, which constitute more than two thirds of
Welsh councils’ budgeted revenue expenditure in 2017-18 (see Table 5.6). As we have mentioned earlier,
these two service areas tend to be considered political priorities, and, social care especially, face significant
cost and demand pressures. While protecting these key services is extremely important in the face of rising
pressures, other services — for example, economic development, transport, local environmental services, and
culture and heritage services to name a few, have already experienced substantial cuts, as we discussed in
Section 3.2. Further cuts, as a result of protecting education and social services could undermine the longer-

term sustainability of service provision.

Table 5.6: Welsh councils’ budgeted revenue expenditure 2017-18, £million

Area 2017-18 budget Share of total
Education 2,599 42%
Social Services 1,729 28%
Council fund housing (exc. Housing benefit) 120 2%
Local environmental services 386 6%
Roads and transport 281 4%
Libraries, culture, heritage, sport and recreation 204 3%
Planning, economic and community development 85 1%
Local tax collection 26 0%
Debt financing costs 322 5%
Law, order and protective services 137 2%
Central administration 177 3%
Other revenue expenditure 187 3%
Total revenue expenditure 6,253 100%

Note: Excluding spending on police and housing benefit. Source: See Appendix.

Tudalen y pecyn 92
39




Scenarios for local government

We consider the following three social services spending scenarios (following Phillips and Simpson, 2016):

S1: Councils do not protect any area of spending from cuts, nor privilege any in the event of a budget
increase. Each council spending area maintains its share of the total based on the 2017-18 budget,
increasing or decreasing in subsequent years in line with overall available funding. Debt financing costs
are assumed to decrease in line with their average change since 2009 (-1.3% per year in real terms.)

S2: As S1if the budget is increasing, but if there are cuts then councils protect spending on education in
real terms at its 2017-18 level.

S3: As S1if the budget is increasing, but if there are cuts then councils protect spending on education
and social care in real terms at its 2017-18 level. Debt financing costs are also assumed to maintain a
constant share of the budget.

Figure 5.1 shows the local government trade-offs under different spending scenarios in our baseline local
council revenue scenario L1. The total cuts to local government amount to 3.1 per cent over 2017-18 to 2021-
22. If councils do not protect any service area (spending scenario S1), then between 2017-18 to 2021-22

cuts of 3.1 per cent will be distributed equally across all council service areas. If councils were to protect
education spending (S2), there would be a small increase in education spending over 2017-18 to 2021-22
(see note to Table 5.7). However, social services and other local council services would face cuts of 6.9 per
cent. Under the spending scenario where education and social services are both protected (S3), cuts to other
‘unprotected’ services increase to 16.2 per cent over the same period. Table 5.7 shows the local government
trade-offs under other local government revenue scenarios (L2-L4, and L1+).

Figure 5.1: Cuts to local government spending areas under spending scenarios S1-S3, in baseline council
revenue scenario L1, 2017-18 to 2021-22, per cent.
S1 s2 S3
4%
2%

0% [ [

2% l I I I

-4%
6%
-8%
-10%
-12%
-14%
-16%
-18%

. Education Social Services Other . Total

Note: The increase in spending on education under local councils service spending scenario S2 and on education and social care in
S3 given local government revenue scenario L1 (also L2) comes from the fact that the local government budget increases slightly in
real terms in 2020-21and 2021-22. See Note to Table 5.7. Source: See Appendix.

Tudalen y pecyn 93
40



Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

Table 5.7: Real-terms cuts to different council spending areas under scenario R1, 2017-18 to 2019-20, per cent

Spend scenario | Spend area L1 L2 L3 L4 L1+
S1 Education -31% -2.0% -12.2% -8.0% -0.9%
Social Services -3.1% -2.0% -12.2% -8.0% -0.9%
Other -31% -2.0% -12.2% -8.0% -0.9%
Total -3.2% -21% -11.8% -7.9% -11%
S2 Education 1.7% 1.7% 0.0% 0.0% 3.3%
Social Services -6.9% -4.8% -217% -14.3% -4.2%
Other -6.9% -4.8% -21.7% -14.3% -4.2%
Total -3.2% -21% -11.8% -7.9% -11%
S3 Education 1.7% 1.7% 0.0% 0.0% 3.3%
Social Services 1.7% 17% 0.0% 0.0% 3.3%
Other -16.2% -1.7% -451% -29.7% -12.2%
Total -3.2% -21% -11.8% -7.9% -11%

Note: The increase in spending on education under local councils service spending scenario S2 and on education and social care in S3
given local government revenue scenario L1 (also L2 and L1+) comes from the fact that the local government budget increases slightly in
real terms in 2020-21 and 2021-22 in revenue scenario R1. This is because, although NBF-adjusted block grant under R1 stays the same
in real terms, implementing the BGA increases the block grant slightly between 2019-20 and 2021-22. This small increase then feeds
into the Welsh Government budget, where the increase is made larger because of projected business rates growth. This is reflected in
the central government support to local government allocations. Over 2017-18 to 2021-22, in scenarios L1 and L2 the effects of BGA and
business rate growth are further increased by the assumptions about council tax revenue growth. As such, the change for education
under S2 and education and social care under S3 is 0% over 2017-18 to 2019-20, but 1.7% over 2017-18 to 2021-22. Similar reasoning
applies to the higher council tax revenue L1+. In scenarios L3 and L4, the local government budget is falling in real terms in each year,
and so the change for education and social care is O over 2017-18 to 2021-22. Source: See Appendix.

As can be seen from Table 5.7, depending on the scenario combination, cuts to unprotected ‘Other’ services
range from as little as 1 per cent (R1L1+S1) to as much as 45 per cent (RIL3S3). Unprotected service cuts

across all five local government revenue scenarios and all three local council spending scenarios average at
13 per cent. Delivering such cuts to services that have already seen substantial cuts would likely represent a

significant challenge.

To give an example of some of the potential challenges ahead, Figure 5.2 and Figure 5.3 plot the projected
cumulative changes to net spending on education and personal social services (areas that were protected
over the recent period of austerity) and the two highest value unprotected services between 2009-10 and
2021-22 with respect to revenue scenario L1 and under service scenarios S1and S3 respectively. Together
these services made up 83 per cent of the total local government service spending in 2009-10. Protecting
spending on education and personal social services (scenario S3) sees spending on culture, sport and
heritage related services fall by 47 per cent compared to 39 per cent under scenario S1. Similarly, spending
on transport and roads is projected to fall by 36 per cent relative to 26 per cent when councils do not protect

any area of spending when allocating cuts.

Tudalen y pecyn 94
41



Scenarios for local government

Figure 5.2: Cuts to protected and unprotected local government spending areas in revenue scenario L1
under scenario S1, 2009-10 to 2021-22

0% I
L ~
‘E’ § -5%
22 -10%
=g -15%
o 9
< ‘; -20%
T2 25%
d>) (%]
= g’ -30%
Tg‘é -35%
o
3 & -40%
-45%
Transport & Roads Culture, Sport & Heritage Education & Personal

social services

. % change to 2015-16 (outturn) % change to 2021-22 (projected)

Source: See Appendix.

Figure 5.3: Cuts to protected and unprotected local government spending areas in revenue scenario L1
under scenario S3, 2009-10 to 2021-22

10%
SRy
SS 0% I
=)
a7
c 109
= 8 10%
o9
c N
85 -20%
O C
ez
2 0
= £ -30%
ST
c
€ o
5 2 -40%
(@) (7]
-50%
Transport & Roads Culture, Sport & Heritage Education & Personal

social services
. % change to 2015-16 (outturn) % change to 2021-22 (projected)

Note: Changes up to 2015-16 employ revenue outturn data to calculate changes in net public spending. Projected numbers are
calculated using the latest available budgeted revenue expenditure by service data.

Source: Budgeted revenue expenditure by service detail (available here: https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Local-Government/
Finance/Revenue/Budgets/budgetedrevenueexpenditure-by-servicedetail) and local government revenue outturn data (available at:
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Local-Government/Finance/Revenue/Outturn/revenueoutturnexpenditure-by-authority).

The above analysis and example illustrations show that continuing to protect ‘key’ public services at the
local government level would come at a cost to the other services under our baseline scenario R1. As we
have illustrated, service areas such as roads and transport, and culture and heritage services, which have
already seen substantial cuts in the past are likely to be cut further to 2021-22. Local-level policy levers such
as raising council taxes may have limited room for manoeuvre. The Welsh Government (2016) is seeking
systematic and mandatory regional working among local authorities, including with other bodies such as
health boards, to deliver more effective and efficient services, as discussed in a recent PPIW report (Johnson
and Williams, 2017). We have not looked at shared service arrangements in this report but will be looking at

this further in later work. Tudalen y pecyn 95
42



Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

6. Conclusions

Pending the clarification of the UK Government’s fiscal strategy and given the degree of uncertainty about
the UK economy and Brexit, Wales could well be facing a further period of squeezed public spending and
the need for difficult choices.

Public services in Wales might be said to be just-managing in financial terms, despite significant cuts in some
areas. Some are now being delivered in very different ways, often drawing on community-based models.

But resources are being spread thinly and there are some warning signs. The public sector pay cap has been
fundamental to the sustainability of services but it is not clear how long that will hold. Meeting the growing
demands associated with an ageing society and rising NHS costs will inevitably put an upward pressure on
NHS and adult social care budgets. Under our baseline revenue scenario, if the Welsh Government were to
grow the NHS in like with the Health Foundation’s recommendation of 3 per cent, the NHS budget could be
taking over 55 per cent of RDEL by 2021-22.

There is a question about how much further the budgets for unprotected services (such as transport and
roads, or culture and heritage) can be cut while still ensuring that they are sustainable. There may not be a
single tipping point but continued attrition would call into question whether the full range of services we have
now is affordable. The judgement becomes harder because many ‘unprotected’ services play an important
role in enabling ‘protected’ services to deliver the required outcomes.

As our analysis shows, even a relatively modest relaxation in UK Government fiscal policy would make a
difference. And the new tax powers and Fiscal Framework should have an impact over the longer term
although the immediate impact will probably be limited.

There will rightly be much attention on how the Welsh Government applies its new tax powers. Welsh
Government policy is to leave any increase to the rate of Welsh Income Tax for the next Assembly. But, as
we have shown, tax increases would have a limited if important impact on the Welsh Budget, especially if
UK policy was focussed on tax reduction. In practice, it could only be part of solution, especially given the
current sluggish growth in average earnings.

There will be continued pressure to secure better value from current spending but, on their own, it seems
unlikely that efficiencies can fill the funding gap.

The options for managing the pressures on health and social care services will inevitably feature strongly in
any future strategy. The OBR (2017d) has explored ‘a variety of ways in which Government could deliver the
same output for less by lowering costs (not least non-pay costs) and increasing productivity’ through service
change and integration. Action on both these would seem an essential part of the mix for Wales, the third
option, which is to reduce health care provision, seeming highly unlikely. The need to increase productivity
in the NHS through service transformation and efficiency is widely recognised and the current Parliamentary
Review of Health and Social Care in Wales (Welsh Government, 2017b) is looking hard at these issues. There
has been a continuing debate in England about how best to resource service transformation and the role of
change funding. The debate is relevant to Wales.

The next four years are likely to be critical to putting the resourcing of public services onto a more
sustainable track for the longer-term which can support the community through a period of fundamental

economic, demographic and environmental change.

Tudalen y pecyn 96
43



References

7. References

Cribb, J., Joyce, R., and Norris Keiller, A. (2017). The UK Labour Market: Where Do We Stand Now? Institute
for Fiscal Studies Briefing Note BN197. Retrieved from: https://www.ifs.org.uk/publications/9170

Cribb, J. (2017). Earnings and the labour market., Institute for Fiscal Studies Presentation, 09 March 2017.
Retrieved from: https://www.ifs.org.uk/publications/8971

Davies, C. (2017). Pay cap: Minister calls for UK cash to fund public sector rises. BBC News article, 7 July
2017. Retrieved from: http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-wales-politics-40531031

Deaner, B., and Phillips, D. (2013). Scenarios for the Welsh government budget to 2025-26. Institute for
Fiscal Studies Report No. R83. Retrieved from: https://www.ifs.org.uk/comms/r83.pdf

Emmerson, C. (2017a). Where next for tax and spend? Institute for Fiscal Studies Observations, 12 July 2017.
Retrieved from: https://www.ifs.org.uk/publications/9363

Emmerson, C. (2017b). Where next for tax and spend? Institute for Fiscal Studies Presentation, 12 July 2017.
Retrieved from: https://www.ifs.org.uk/uploads/Presentations/WhereNextForTaxAndSpend.pdf

HM Government and Welsh Government. (2017). The agreement between the Welsh Government and the
United Kingdom Government on the Welsh Government’s fiscal framework. Retrieved from: http://gov.
wales/funding/fiscal-reform/framework/?lang=en

HM Treasury and The Rt Hon Philip Hammond MP. (2017). Mansion House 2017: Speech by the Chancellor
of the Exchequer. Retrieved from: https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/mansion-house-2017-speech-
by-the-chancellor-of-the-exchequer

House of Commons Library. (2017a). School funding England. Current systems and proposals for ‘fairer
school funding’, Briefing paper 06702. Retrieved from: http://www.parliament.uk/briefing-papers/SNO6702.pdf

House of Commons Library. (2017b). The UK’s contribution to the EU Budget. Briefing paper CBP7886.
Retrieved from: http://researchbriefings.parliament.uk/ResearchBriefing/Summary/CBP-7886#fullreport

Innes, D. and Tetlow, G. (2015). Central Cuts, Local Decision-Making: Changes in Local Government
Spending and Revenues in England, 2009-10 to 2014-15. Institute for Fiscal Studies Briefing Note BN166.
Retrieved from: https://www.ifs.org.uk/publications/7617

Johnson, C. and Williams, E. (2017). Considerations for Designing and Implementing Effective Shared
Services. Public Policy Institute for Wales. Retrieved from: http://ppiw.org.uk/files/2017/09/PPIW-Report-
Shared-services-in-local-government.pdf

Luchinskaya, D., Ogle, J., and Trickey, M. (2017). A delicate balance? Health & Social Care spending in
Wales. Wales Public Services 2025. Retrieved from: http://www.walespublicservices2025.org.uk/2017/03/08/
a-delicate-balance-health-social-care-spending-in-wales/

Office for Budgetary Responsibility. (2017a). Economic and fiscal outlook. March 2017. Retrieved from: http://
cdn.budgetresponsibility.org.uk/March2017EFO-231.pdf

Office for Budgetary Responsibility. (2017b). Fiscal risks report. July 2017. Retrieved from: http://cdn.
budgetresponsibility.org.uk/July_2017_Fiscal_risks.pdf

Tudalen y pecyn 97
44



Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

Office for Budgetary Responsibility. (2017c). Devolved tax forecast. March 2017. Retrieved from: http://
budgetresponsibility.org.uk/download/march-2017-devolved-taxes-forecast/

Office for Budgetary Responsibility. (2017d). Fiscal sustainability report. January 2017. Retrieved from: http://
cdn.budgetresponsibility.org.uk/FSR_Jan17.pdf

Phillips, D. and Simpson, S. (2016). Welsh budgetary trade-offs to 2019-20. Institute for Fiscal Studies Report
No. R120. Retrieved from: https://www.ifs.org.uk/publications/8470

Poole, E., Ifan, G., and Phillips, D. (2017). Fair Funding for Taxing Times? Assessing the Fiscal Framework
Agreement. Third Report on the 2016-17 Fiscal Framework Negotiations for Wales. Wales Governance Centre
at Cardiff University and Institute for Fiscal Studies. Retrieved from: http://sites.cardiff.ac.uk/wgc/publications/

Poole, E,, Ifan, G., and Wyn Jones, R. (2016). Government expenditure and revenue Wales 2016. Wales
Governance Centre at Cardiff University. Retrieved from: http://sites.cardiff.ac.uk/wgc/files/2016/04/
Government-Expenditure-and-Revenue-Wales-2016.pdf

StatsWales. (2016). Revenue outturn expenditure, by authority. Retrieved from: https://statswales.gov.wales/
Catalogue/Local-Government/Finance/Revenue/Outturn/revenueoutturnexpenditure-by-authority

Tetlow G. (2013). We shall squeeze... until the pips squeak. Institute for Fiscal Studies Presentation from
the IFS Post-Spending Round Briefing, 27 June 2013. Retrieved from: http://www.ifs.org.uk/budgets/sr2013/
gemma_tetlow.pdf

The Conservative and Unionist Party Manifesto 2017 (2017). Forward together: our plan for a stronger
Britain and a prosperous future. Retrieved from: https://www.conservatives.com/manifesto

Watt, T. and Roberts, A. (October 2016). The path to sustainability: Funding projections for the NHS
in Wales to 2019/20 and 2030/31. The Health Foundation. Retrieved from: http://www.health.org.uk/
publication/path-sustainability

Welsh Audit Office. (2017). Welsh Government oversight of further-education colleges’ finances and
delivery. Auditor General for Wales. Retrieved from: https://www.wao.gov.uk/system/files/publications/FE-
finances-eng-2017.pdf

Welsh Government. (2017a). Welsh rates of income tax FAQs. Retrieved from: http://gov.wales/funding/fiscal-
reform/welsh-taxes/income-tax/?lang=en

Welsh Government. (2017b). Review of Health and Social Care in Wales - Interim Report. Retrieved from:
https://beta.gov.wales/review-health-and-social-care-wales-interim-report

Welsh Government. (2016). Local government reform. Retrieved from: http://gov.wales/topics/
localgovernment/local-government-reform/?lang=en

Tudalen y pecyn 98
45



Appendix: Modelling the Welsh Government’s budget to 2021-22

8. Appendix: Modelling the Welsh Government’s budget to 2021-22

This report follows the methodology of the earlier Welsh budgetary trade-offs reports closely (Phillips and
Simpson, 2016; Deaner and Phillips, 2013). Please see Appendices A and C in Phillips and Simpson (2016)
for details. We provide detail about the main assumptions underlying the Welsh block grant, Welsh budget
allocations, Welsh local government revenue and local government allocations throughout the report. For
convenience, most of the main points are summarised here. In addition, we make several other assumptions
in our modelling methodology relating to extending the forecast to 2021-22, and adjusting the Welsh

block grant for the new Fiscal Framework Agreement. This Appendix sets out our underlying modelling
assumptions.

81 Modelling UK-level spending allocations to 2021-22

The most recent spending plans for UK departmental expenditure limits (DELSs), including the Welsh block
grant, are set out in the UK Spring Budget 2017, from 2016-17 for each year until 2019-20. But these plans are
likely to change for several main reasons, and so we model alternative scenarios.

In contrast, Phillips and Simpson (2016) start with the Spending Review 2015, and then add on the March
Budget 2016 changes. In this report, we start with the March Budget 2017, and take 2016-17 as our first year.
Taking the March Budget 2017 as the starting point resolves some of the comparability issues stemming from
the reorganisation of government departments that took place in 2016.%”

First, the issue of the £3.5 billion of planned but unallocated cuts remains. This formed part of the baseline
scenario in the Phillips and Simpson (2016) report, and this update does the same. As of March 2017, these
cuts have been factored into the budget tables, but not tied to a particular department. From Government
documentation, it seems likely that Health, Core schools, International Development and Defence will be
exempt from the cuts.®® It also looks like £1bn of the cuts would be reinvested into key priority areas (although
it is not clear what these areas would be). The Government has suggested that efficiency savings made at
local government would be reinvested into social care. Given the limited information available, we allocate
the £3.5bn cuts to all departments except Health, Core schools,* International Development and Defence, in
proportion to the planned resource DELs for those departments in 2019-20. We do not reinvest £1bn into any
spending area.

Second, mounting financial pressures, particularly on the public sector pay cap, and NHS and social care
funding, coupled with higher than forecast inflation, uncertainty surrounding Brexit, and the delicate political
situation following the UK election, mean that the UK government could decide to delay or cancel the cuts
planned for the period to 2019-20. We include a resource scenario that cancels the cuts in 2019-20, and

37 Higher and Further education moved out of BIS and into DfE, and Energy merged with the remainder of BIS to form BEIS. Another
issue regarding the starting point relates to the classification of R&D expenditure. From March 2016, R&D expenditure shifted
from resource to capital DEL in the English departments, but not in the Welsh Government. The 2015 Spending Review was the
last source that classified R&D in the same way in England and in Wales. However, the Welsh Government is currently in process
of moving to the new accounting standards. For our modelling purposes, the R&D discrepancy is not likely to be of substantial
consequence.

38 The March 2017 Budget includes a row which says ‘Adjustment for planned efficiency savings’ in 2019-20, but almost no
information is available on how the cuts would be allocated. Details suggest that the NHS, ‘core schools’, defence, and
international aid will be protected. It is also suggested that efficiencies made at the local government be reinvested into social
care (mostly a local responsibility). Core schools funding, or the Dedicated Schools Grant, was £40.7bn in 2016-17, approximately
2/3 of the Education Budget (http://www.parliament.uk/briefing-papers/SN06702.pdf). We therefore model efficiency cuts to
affect the non-protected third of the Education budget, while core schools are protected in real terms. See: https://www.gov.uk/
government/news/efficiency-review-to-drive-productive-public-services

39 Core schools funding, or the Dedicated Schools Grant, was £40.7bn in 2016-17, approximately 2/3 of the Education Budget (http://
www.parliament.uk/briefing-papers/SN06702.pdf). We therefore model efficiency cuts to affect the non-protected third of the

Education budget, while core schools are protectépurda*m pecyn 99
46



Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

allocates extra funding to the NHS, as set out in the Conservative 2017 manifesto. At the 2017 General
Election, the Conservative party pledged to increase NHS spending “by a minimum of £8 billion in real

terms over the next five years” (Conservative Party, 2017, p. 66) and second, to “increase the overall schools
budget by £4 billion by 2022” (p. 51). No details were given about the profile of this spending, but this report
assumes that spending (real terms, in the case of the NHS, and nominal, in the case of schools) will increase
linearly from 2018-19 until the additional amount pledged is reached.*® Since we also do not know how

the funding will be allocated between resource and capital budgets in health and education, we assume

that both resource and capital will grow proportionately, such that the sum of resource and capital health
spending in 2022-23 is £8bn higher in real terms than in 2017-18. We also assume that the increase will occur
annually at a rate of 1.3 per cent from 2018-19 onwards.*

We also use an updated version of the Phillips and Simpson (2016) scenario that holds constant (protects)
in real-terms any DEL forecast to fall below its 2017-18 real-terms level on current plans, or alternatively
allocates the published March Budget 2017 cash allocations for that year, whichever is higher.

On capital DEL, the Autumn Statement 2016 and the March Budget 2017 resulted in modest capital
increases. We include scenarios based on current plans, and ones where capital spending is brought
forward, where any changes in given years are spread across DELs in proportion to their contribution to the
total capital DEL.

8.2 Modelling the underlying block grants (including the new Needs Based Factor)

The March 2017 Budget sets out the ‘rounded’ devolved nation DELSs (to the nearest £0.1bn), which we

take as our starting point. We project the Welsh ‘block grant’ using our projections for the total UK DEL, our
assumptions for how this will be allocated between Whitehall departments, and the Barnett formula, updated
for the new Welsh Fiscal Framework. The Barnett formula is applied to spending decisions taken by the UK
government regarding different government programmes, and provides additional funding to each of the
devolved administrations. The amount of additional funding (Barnett consequentials) depends on whether
or not a function is devolved, and the comparable population proportion. From 2018-19, a Needs Based
Factor (NBF) of 105 per cent will be introduced into the Welsh Block grant calculations. This means that if the
consequentials for Wales are greater than 0 from 2018-19 going forward, the consequential will be multiplied
by 1.05 (105%). If the consequential is O or less, it will be left as is. The factor will be increased to 115% only
at the point at which relative Welsh funding per person converges to below 115% of the level in England (see
Poole et al. (2017) for a more detailed discussion).

It should be noted that the 2017 March Budget document does not account for the Welsh and Scottish
governments’ fiscal frameworks when setting out the block grants, and these will be further adjusted once the
fiscal frameworks are applied. This formula is designed so that, in principle, the block grant changes by the same
amount per person as the change in ‘comparable spending’ per person by Whitehall departments in England,
where ‘comparable spending’ is spending in England on functions that are devolved to the Welsh Government.

For the many Whitehall departments which cover both devolved and non-devolved functions, when
overall departmental budgets are being set at Spending Reviews, the Barnett formula does not take into
account all the change in their budget. Instead, the department is allocated a ‘comparability factor’ which

40 In other words, NHS real spending allocations will increase linearly until 2022-23, until the point at which the real difference
between 2017-18 levels and 2022-23 new levels is £8 billion.

41 The figure of 1.3% is calculated by calculating the compound annual growth rate (CAGR) that an amount of money would have to
grow by each year in order to reach a particular value in a set number of years. In this case, the sum of real resource and capital
DELs for Health in 2017-18 is £123.7bn. For this value to be £8bn higher in five years’ time, i.e. to reach £131.7bn in 2022-23, the
initial value would need to grow by 1.3% a year. The CAGR formula is (New Value/Original Value)*(1/No.of years), and in this case,

131.7/123.7)*(1/5)-1 = 1.3%. Tuda'en y pecyn 100
47



Appendix: Modelling the Welsh Government’s budget to 2021-22

reflects the proportion of its overall budget spent on functions for which responsibility is devolved to the
Welsh Government. For instance, in the case of the Department for Transport, 80.9 per cent of spending
relates to functions devolved to the Welsh Government. To calculate the change in the block grant flowing
from the change in this departmental budget, the following calculation is used: the departmental budget
change multiplied by 5.69 per cent (Wales’ population share) multiplied by 80.9 per cent (the departmental
comparability factor), and, frorm 2018-19, if the resulting consequential is positive, multiplying it by the needs-
based factor of 1.05.

Comparability factors are typically updated during a spending review, and no new comparability factors

were calculated to reflect the government department reorganisation that took place in 2016. But, in order to
model how UK-wide RDEL affects the Welsh block grant, updated comparability factors are useful. We used
the Statement of Funding Policy 2015 and moved functions between departments as appropriate to calculate
new factors. These are:

Department Scotland Wales Northern Ireland Compared to population
Business, Innovation and Skills 66.40% 66.3% 66.70% England
Energy & Climate Change 1.80% 1.80% 15.30% England
Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy 26.97% 26.82% 30.89% England
Education 100% 100% 100% England
Education (DfE) 100% 100% 100% England

Note that when the Department for Transport allocates its budget, it may not allocate it in proportion to
existing levels of spending by function. In this case the cuts to ‘comparable’ functions for which responsibility
is devolved to the Welsh Government may be more or less than the average departmental cut. Therefore,
the use of ‘comparability factors’ does not necessarily ensure the per-person change in the Welsh block
grant equals to per-person change in spending on comparable functions in England. However, at the time of
Spending Reviews, the precise allocations to specific functions are generally unknown.

In our scenarios, we have assumed that any changes in departmental spending are treated by the Barnett
formula as general changes to budgets, with the updated comparability factors applied. If, however, any
changes in departmental spending were allocated to specific functions, the comparability factor that would
be used would be either 100% if those functions were devolved or 0% if they were not (this the approach
taken when announcements on specific functions are made in annual UK government budgets). In practice,
the precise impact of any changes to existing spending plans on the Welsh block grant may differ somewhat
from what we model.

8.3 Modelling Welsh tax revenues and block grant adjustments
From 2018-19, Stamp Duty Land Tax (SDLT) and the Landfill tax (LT) will be replaced by new devolved taxes in
Wales. We assume a 10p share of each income tax band will also be devolved from 2019-20.

Welsh tax revenue forecasts are taken directly from two sources:

- Income tax, stamp duty land tax, landfill tax and aggregates levy revenues are taken from the OBR’s
Devolved Taxes Forecast (Office for Budget Responsibility (2017c). These revenues are forecast with
the assumption that Welsh Government does not alter tax policy after devolution.

- Non-domestic rates (business rates) revenues are taken from Table 7.1 of HM Treasury’s July 2017
PESA (HM Treasury (2017). These are referred to as ‘locally financed support in Wales’. However, the

Tudalen y pecyn 101
48




Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

PESA July 2017 release only gives business rates revenue up to 2019-20. To project business rates
revenue for 2020-21 and 2021-22, we assume that the revenue will continue to grow at its historic
average growth rate 2016-17 to 2019-20, which means that it will grow at 1.7 per cent in real terms in
each of 2020-21 and 2021-22.

Block grant adjustments (BGAs) are calculated as set out in the fiscal framework agreement published

in December 2016. The baseline BGA for SDLT and LT in 2018-19 is equal to the OBR’s forecast of Welsh
revenues in 2017-18, and updated according to changes in revenues in the rest of the UK to 2018-19 (via the
Comparable Model described in Box 2.1). The baseline BGA for income tax in 2019-20 equals the forecast of
devolved Welsh revenues in that year.

Subsequent BGAs are then updated according to the Comparable Model. We use OBR forecasts of SDLT
and LT revenues in the rest of the UK (excluding Scotland). As set out in the agreement, separate BGAs will
be created for each income tax band. As the required forecasts for these are not yet published, we use
HMRC data on tax liabilities in each band for 2017-18, and apply these shares to the OBR forecasts.

8.4 Projecting the Welsh Government’s budget’s total DEL

For a number of reasons, the total amount of resources (excluding depreciation) allocated by the Welsh
Government to its MEGs’ DELs is less than the total amount allocated to the Welsh Government by the UK
Treasury via the Welsh block grant. Thus, in order to examine the trade-offs facing the Welsh Government when
setting the budgets for its MEGs, we need to move from our projections for the Welsh block grant, to projections
for the Welsh Government’s total stated DEL. To do this, we assume that the Welsh Government’s DEL (excluding
depreciation) grows at the same percentage rate as the Welsh block grant under our various scenarios.

For example, in our baseline scenario, in 2018-19 the Welsh block grant (adjusted for NBF) is due to fall by 1.5
per cent in real terms relative to the latest available 2017-18 figure. We therefore assume a 1.5 per cent fall in
the Welsh Government’s total DEL in 2018-19 too.

Although business rates have been formally classed as AME since April 2015, in practice, they are spent on
resource-type items at the local government level (see also Phillips and Simpson (2016), p.53). Therefore, we
include business rate revenues in the overall Welsh resource budget from 2015-16 onwards.

8.5 Modelling Welsh Government trade-offs

Our scenarios for the allocation of the Welsh Government’s DEL and NDR revenues across service areas are
essentially arbitrary, but are designed to illustrate the sorts of trade-offs the Welsh Government may face when
allocating budgets across service areas. Two features of these scenarios are worth discussing however.

« In our scenarios W1 and W2, Welsh ‘core NHS’ spending is ‘protected’ by allocating to it the cash-
terms increases in the Welsh block grant that result from increases in NHS spending in England (via
application of the Barnett formula). This protection results in small real-terms increases in the Welsh
‘core NHS’ budget.

« In our scenarios W2 and W4, we protect that part of the funding the Welsh Government provides to
councils via the revenue support grant (RSG) and redistributed non-domestic rates (NDR) revenues
that relates to councils’ responsibilities for education and (adult) social services. We calculate this
using the figures set out in the Local Government Financial Settlement which separates out the
funding allocations the Welsh government determines for councils into funding allocations for
separate service areas (including education and social services).

Tudalen y pecyn 102
49



Appendix: Modelling the Welsh Government’s budget to 2021-22

In scenario W4, when we grow adult social services by 4 per cent in real terms and protect the remaining
social services in real terms, what we mean is that we increase the central government support to local
government for adult social services, or two thirds of the central government support to local government
social service budget, by 4 per cent in real terms. Then we protect the remaining third of the central
government support to local government social service budget, and the Health, Welfare and Sport MEG
social care component in real terms.

It should be noted that just because the central government spend allocation to particular local government
services is protected or increased in our model, it does not mean that the local government will necessarily
increase its spend on these services in proportion. This is because central government support to local
government is non-hypothecated. Our scenarios for local government look at the impact of local government
spending decisions on funding available to local government services.

8.6 Modelling Welsh local government budgets

We discussed the main assumptions underlying the various scenarios for the revenues available to local
councils in Wales and the allocation of these funds between now and 2021-22 in Section 5. However,

in addition to these assumptions, a number of adjustments have had to be made in order to utilise our
projection methodology.

Baseline revenues for local councils

We begin by taking the local government ‘budgeted financing of gross revenue expenditure, by source of
funding’ (from StatsWales) for all Welsh local authority types, in 2017-18 and subtract any revenues accruing
to Police authorities.*? This forms our 2017—-18 baseline for the funds available to unitary authorities, fire
authorities and national park authorities (together ‘local authorities’ or ‘councils’) in Wales, including:

« Revenue Support Grant (RSG)

« Share of redistributed Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) revenues
- Specific grants

« Council tax revenues

- Discretionary NDR reliefs offered to rate payers.

Projecting grants from the Welsh Government

In order to project how central funding for local councils will change over time, we would like to identify
these spending items in our projections for the Welsh Government’s budget, and simply insert our forecasts
for these into our projected revenues for councils. However, the Welsh Government’s budget does not
individually list all spending items, so cannot be tallied exactly with councils’ revenue budgets.

Instead we take baseline figures for RSG, redistributed NDR revenues, and specific grants and grow these in
line with those Welsh Government spending items which best approximate the availability of these sources
of funding.

For the purpose of analysis, the RSG and share of redistributed NDR revenues are added together and
treated as one funding source, the ‘formula grant’.** Council revenues from this formula grant (NDR and RSG)
are then projected forward by applying the same percentage change as in our projections for the sum of the
DEL and AME components of the Welsh Government’s ‘Funding Support for Local Government’ (the DEL

42 Available at: https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Local-Government/Finance/Revenue

43 This is because the division between the two is essentially arbitrary: although non-domestic rates raised in Wales are supposedly
hypothecated to local government, the amount raised does not affect the overall amount of funding councils receive, with higher

NDR revenues being offset by lower RSG and vice'rverdaa|en y pecyn 103
50



Welsh Government Budgetary Trade-offs: Looking Forward to 2021-22

component is effectively RSG and the AME component is redistributed NDR revenues).

The specific grants received by local councils are not individually listed in the Welsh Government’s
spending plans, which means we do not directly project what the Welsh Government plans to spend on
these items. Instead, we assume that the specific grants received by local councils grow in line with the
average percentage change in Welsh Government spending on areas other than ‘Funding Support for Local
Government’ and core NHS spending. This is on the basis that it is from these other spending areas that
funding for specific grants will have to come.

Projecting council tax and other revenue sources

Council tax revenues are assumed to grow (from their 2017-18 baseline) in line with the OBR’s latest forecast
(from the March Economic and Fiscal Outlook.) For example, between 2017-18 and 2018-19 revenues in
cash-terms are forecast to increase by 4.9% due to increases in council tax level and the council tax base.

When simulating increases in council tax of a year above forecast, we scale council tax revenues up by 3.3%
in 2019-20, 6.7% in 2020-21 and 10% in 2021-22.

For the other smaller revenue lines we make the following assumptions:

- Discretionary non-domestic rate relief are forecast to change at the same percentage rate as
business rates revenues.

« We assume that from 2017-18 onwards councils do not draw down any funds from their reserves,
and that there are no other adjustments.

Modelling local council budget choices

We begin by taking spending allocation for councils in Wales from the 2016—17 budgeted revenue
expenditure. Using this as a baseline, our scenarios for the allocation of local council grant and council tax
revenues across service areas are essentially arbitrary, but are designed to reflect the sorts of trade-offs
Welsh councils may face when allocating budgets across service areas. In particular, real-terms protection for
social services reflects recent experience in Wales (where spending has increased in real terms by 1% since
2009-10). Real-terms protection for education services would contrast with recent (less-than-average) cuts
but would accord with recent experience in England.

Calculating cuts in local government spending between 2009-10 and 2015-16

Changes in local government spending by service area are calculated using outturns from 2009-10 and
2015-16.#* Adjustments were made to the figures for education and social services for the shift of funding
for some early years provision (such as Flying Start) from education to social services, and expenditure by
national parks was moved to ‘other revenue expenditure’ in 2016-17 for consistency with 2009-10.

44 Available at: https://statswaIes.gov.waIes/CaTrauQ.a[mqayﬁgyereypqu@@cemevenue.
51



Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru
Wales Public Services

PRIFYSGOL

(A'RDYH

CARDIFF
UNIVERSITY

Canolfan
Llywodraethiant Cymru

Wales Governance
Centre

Tudalen y pecyn 105



	Agenda
	2.1 PTN1 - Llythyr gan Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet ar gyfer Cyllid a Llywodraeth Leol - 21 Medi 2017
	4 Ymchwiliad i'r amcangyfrifon ariannol sy'n cyd-fynd â deddfwriaeth: Trafod yr adroddiad drafft
	5 Cost gofalu am boblogaeth sy'n heneiddio - Dull o gynnal y gwaith craffu
	FIN(5)-22-17 P4 - Cylch gorchwyl

	6 Cyllideb Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 2018-19 - Dull o gynnal y gwaith craffu
	7 Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru 2025: Taro Bargen ym Mhroses Gyllidebol Llywodraeth Cymru: Edrych Ymlaen at 2021-22: Sesiwn friffio anffurfiol
	Exec Summary
	Introduction
	2
	2.2
	3
	3.2
	4
	4.2
	5
	5.2
	6
	7
	8
	8.2
	8.3
	8.4
	8.6


	Button 1: 
	Button 2: 
	Button 3: 
	Button 4: 
	Button 5: 
	Button 6: 
	Button 7: 
	Button 8: 
	Button 9: 
	Button 10: 
	Button 11: 
	Button 12: 
	Button 13: 
	Button 14: 
	Button 15: 
	Button 16: 
	Button 17: 
	Button 18: 
	Button 19: 
	Button 20: 
	Button 21: 
	Button 22: 
	Button 23: 


